
Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Minutes of meeting held on 14 February 2017 (Pages 3 - 7)

3 Urgent Business 
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest 
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation. 

5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 8 - 10)

6 16/01887/73A - Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane, Settrington 
(Pages 11 - 24)

7 16/01658/OUT - North Yorkshire Highways Depot, Manor Vale Lane, 
Kirkbymoorside (Pages 25 - 31)

Please Contact Ellis Mortimer/Karen Hood

Extension 271/386

Date of Publication 6 March 2017

E Mail ellis.mortimer@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Tuesday 14 March 2017 at 6.00 pm
 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

     Agenda

Public Document Pack

http://www.ryedale.gov.uk/


8 16/01775/FUL - Land East Of Longwood Farm, Highfield Lane, Nawton (Pages 
32 - 36)

9 16/01947/MFUL - Easthill, Wilton Road, Thornton Le Dale (Pages 37 - 113)

10 16/02004/MFUL - Whitethorn Farm, Marton (Pages 114 - 125)

11 16/01165/73A - The Quarrels, Back Lane, Marton (Pages 126 - 158)

12 16/01227/OUT - Land To Rear Of The Forge, North Back Lane, Terrington 
(Pages 159 - 177)

13 16/01824/FUL - Land Off Main Street, Whitwell On The Hill (Pages 178 - 200)

14 16/01854/LBC - Sows Ear Cottage. 2 Staxton Farm Yard, Main Street, Staxton 
(Pages 201 - 204)

15 16/02013/HOUSE - Pavilion House , The Terrace, Oswaldkirk (Pages 205 - 220)

16 17/00133/FUL - Land Adj Riverdell, Main Street, Sinnington (Pages 221 - 246)

17 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 

18 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 247 - 252)

19 Update on Appeal Decisions (Pages 253 - 258)



Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 14 February 2017

Planning Committee

held at Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton
Tuesday 14 February 2017

Present

Councillors  Burr MBE, Cleary, Farnell, Frank (Vice-Chairman), Goodrick, Hope, Maud, 
Elizabeth Shields, Thornton and Windress (Chairman)

Substitutes: 

In Attendance

Samantha Burnett, Charlotte Cornforth, Gary Housden, Mel Warters and Anthony 
Winship

Minutes

134 Apologies for absence

There were no apologies.

135 Minutes of meeting held on 17 January 2017

Decision

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 17 January 2017 be 
approved and signed as a correct record.

[For    8 Against    0 Abstain    2]

136 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

137 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Item
Windress 10, 11
Hope 12
Farnell 10, 11
Goodrick 12
Burr 10, 11

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 14 February 2017

138 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning and Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the 
applications for planning permission with recommendations thereon. 

139 16/01881/MFUL - Spaniel Farm, Main Road, Weaverthorpe

16/01881/MFUL - Erection of a general purpose agricultural storage building

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended

[For    10 Against    0 Abstain    0]

140 16/01950/MFUL - Common Farm, Upper Helmsley

16/01950/MFUL - Erection of an equestrian building to include 40no. stables 
and indoor exercise track

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended

[ For    10 Against    0 Abstain    0]

141 16/01870/FUL - Land Adj To Dhekelia, Moor Lane, Broughton

16/01870/MFUL - Erection of detached two-bedroom dwelling with garden shed 
and formation of vehicular access (revised details to refusal 16/00973/FUL 
dated 13.09.2016)

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended and Local 
Occupancy condition.

[ For    9 Against    0 Abstain   0]

Page 4



Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 14 February 2017

142 16/01887/73A - Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane, 
Settrington

16/01887/73A - Variation of Condition 21 of approval 12/00809/73A dated 
29.11.2012 to state that the approved plans shall be "619/21K Site Layout, 
619/20D House Type Design, 619/22B Window Details Eaves Details and 
619/23 Additional Door Details"

Decision

SITE VISIT-  28 FEBRUARY 2017

[For    9 Against    0 Abstain    0]

143 16/01839/MFUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton

16/01839/MFUL - Change of use of agricultural land to allow siting of 28no. 
holiday lodges in association with Canadian Fields campsite together with 
formation of site roads, car parking and turning areas and associated 
landscaping

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended

[For    8 Against    0 Abstain   0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct, Councillors Windress and 
Farnell declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.  

Councillor Burr declared a personal interest of such significance that she did not 
vote on this matter.   

Page 5



Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 14 February 2017

144 14/00949/FUL - Canadian Fields, Gale Lane, Nawton

14/00949/FUL - Erection of pre-fabricated building for use as camp kitchen to 
serve camp cafe (retrospective application)

Decision

DELEGATED CONDITIONAL APPROVAL - Full planning permission and 
conditions delegated to the Head of Planning.   Enforcement Action authorised 
18.11.2014 rescinded

[For    8 Against    0 Abstain    0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct, Councillors Windress and 
Farnell declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.  

Councillor Burr declared a personal interest of such significance that she did not 
vote on this matter.   

Decision contrary to Officer's recommendation 

In considering the application within the context of the policies of the adopted 
Local Plan Strategy read as a whole and all other material considerations, 
Members of the Planning Committee considered there to be fewer  impacts 
arising from the proposal, as identified below .

In the exercise of its statutory discretion to determine planning applications in 
accord with the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise the Planning Committee weighed all the material considerations of 
this case in the decision making balance and reached a planning judgement 
that weighed in favour of approval without a time limit for the following reasons :

- The pre fabricated structure is not out of keeping with the locality in terms of 
its design and materials and the visual impact on the surrounding area is 
limited because the structure is screened by other structures and existing 
landscaping. 

- The highway issues have been resolved as part of the application for the 
lodges regarding localised road widening along Gale Lane

- In terms of planning policy, the general location of restaurants is more likely 
to be a town centre use. However, this facility  will operate as a ‘mixed 
restaurant use’ in terms of serving both residents of the camp and  other 
members of the public 

Page 6



Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 14 February 2017

145 16/01931/CLEUD - Whey Carr Farm, Main Street, Sand Hutton

16/01931/CLEUD - Certificate of Lawfulness in respect of the use, building 
works or activity in breach of Condition 10 of approval 3/111/19C/FA dated 
16.03.1993 began more than 10 years before the date of this application

Decision

APPROVED - Subject to recommended limitations

[For    8 Against   0 Abstain    1]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct, Councillor Hope declared a 
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.  

Councillor Goodrick declared a disclosable pecuniary interest. 

146 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

A Site Visit was arranged for application 16/01887/73A for 28 February 2017 at 
10:30am.

147 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

The Head of Planning and Housing submitted for information (previously 
circulated) a list which gave details of the applications determined by the Head 
of Planning and Housing in accordance with the scheme of delegated decisions.

Meeting Closed at 7:55pm

Page 7



14/03/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/01887/73A

Variation of Condition 21 of approval 12/00809/73A dated 29.11.2012 to 

state that the approved plans shall be "619/21K Site Layout, 619/20D 

House Type Design, 619/22B Window Details Eaves Details and 619/23 

 Additional Door Details"

6

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane Settrington Malton 

North Yorkshire  

16/01658/OUT

Erection of 6no. three bedroom terraced dwellings (site area 0.21ha)

7

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: North Yorkshire Highways Depot Manor Vale Lane Kirkbymoorside YO62 

6EG 

16/01775/FUL

Change of use of agricultural buildings and land to form camping site to 

include reception, office, farm shop, bike storage and the siting of 14no. 

timber holiday cabins together with formation of 16no. car parking spaces

8

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land East Of Longwood Farm Highfield Lane Nawton Helmsley  

16/01947/MFUL

Erection of 9no. four bedroom dwellings, 13no. three bedroom dwellings 

and 4no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking, amenity 

areas and formation of vehicular access to include demolition of existing 

dwelling and buildings

9

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Easthill Wilton Road Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 

7QP 

16/02004/MFUL

Erection of a general purpose agricultural building for storage and housing 

of livestock to adjoin north elevation of existing agricultural building

10

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Whitethorn Farm Marton YO62 6PF 

Page 8

Agenda Item 5



14/03/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/01165/73A

Removal of Condition 07 of approval 3/85/38A/FA dated 01.09.1993 

(agricultural occupancy condition)

11

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: The Quarrels Back Lane Marton Kirkbymoorside YO62 6RD 

16/01227/OUT

Erection of dwelling with retention of outbuilding as domestic garage/store 

(site area 0.064ha)

12

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land To Rear Of The Forge North Back Lane Terrington  

16/01824/FUL

Erection of 2no. semi-detached two bedroom dwellings with formation of 

associated parking area

13

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land Off Main Street Whitwell On The Hill Malton  

16/01854/LBC

Installation of a log burning stove with external flue to east elevation roof 

slope

14

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Sows Ear Cottage 2 Staxton Farm Yard Main Street Staxton Scarborough 

North Yorkshire YO12 4TA 

16/02013/HOUSE

Erection of replacement front porch and removal of front entrance steps

15

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Pavilion House  The Terrace Oswaldkirk Helmsley YO62 5XZ

Page 9



14/03/17

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

17/00133/FUL

Erection of a detached four-bedroom dwelling with detached double garage 

and ramped personal access

16

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land Adj Riverdell Main Street Sinnington Pickering  

Page 10



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 March 2017 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 
 

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 

 

 

 

Item Number: 6 

Application No: 16/01887/73A 

Parish: Settrington Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Non Compliance with Conditions 

Applicant: Mr S Benson 

Proposal: Variation of Condition 21 of approval 12/00809/73A dated 29.11.2012 to state 

that the approved plans shall be "619/21K Site Layout, 619/20D House Type 

Design, 619/22B Window Details Eaves Details and 619/23 Additional Door 

Details" 

Location: Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane Settrington Malton North 

Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date: 30 November 2016 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 25 January 2017 

Case Officer: Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Building Conservation Officer No objection 

Parish Council Object 

 

 

Neighbour responses:  Mr Richard Clark,Mrs Rosemary Mitchell,Keith & Sue 

Herdman,Mr Alan Mitchell, 

 Overall Expiry Date: 6 February 2017 

 
 

 

Members will recall that the application was deferred at the last meeting on Tuesday 14th February 

2017 for a site visit. A site visit took place on Tuesday 28th February 2017. The full report for this 

application can be viewed on the agenda of the previous meeting on Tuesday 14th February 2017. The 

application is recommended for approval, subject to the following conditions. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

 

1 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted and 

agreed details as part of the discharge of conditions application 15/01130/COND regarding 

conditions 02, 03, 04, 05, 06, 09, 10, 11, 13, 15, 16 and 19. 

  

 Reason: To comply with Policies SP12,  SP16, SP19 & SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

  

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Site Location Plan - date stamped 30.11.2016. 

 Site Layouts - 619/21K dated 30.11.2016. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

14 March 2017 

 House Type Design - 619/20D dated 30.11.2016. 

 Window Details Eaves Detail - 619/22B dated 30.11.2016. 

 External Door Details - 619/23 dated 30.11.2016. 

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 7 

Application No: 16/01658/OUT 
Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Appn. Type: Outline Application 

Applicant: Thomas Crown Associates 
Proposal: Erection of 6no. three bedroom terraced dwellings (site area 0.21ha) 

Location: North Yorkshire Highways Depot Manor Vale Lane Kirkbymoorside 

YO62 6EG 
 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  8 December 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  28 November 2016 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Environmental Health Officer Comments made and conditions recommended  

Housing Services Onsite provision details given  

Land Use Planning Recommend condition  
Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No views received to date  

Historic England No comments to make  

Countryside Officer Recommend conditions  
Flood Risk As it  not for major development no comments will be 

provided  

Tree & Landscape Officer Recommend condition  
Property Management No views received to date  

Archaeology Section No views received to date  

Public Rights Of Way Adjacent to PROW applicants  to contact the County 
Council's Access and Public Rights of team   

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  
Environmental Health Officer Object  

North Yorkshire Fire  & Rescue Service No objection/observations to make at this stage  

Parish Council Support - comments made  

 
Neighbour responses: Brian Bancroft, Mrs Elizabeth Banks, M J Bowsher, Mr 

John Wright, Mike & Andrea Cooper, Mr John Barrett , 
Mr Paul Birchall, Mr & Mrs Anji & Malcolm Dowson, 

Helen Beaumont, Norma Collins, Mr James Holt, Mr 

Brian Bancroft, Mr Joe Coughlan, Holt Farms, 
Ravenswick Estate, David And Judith Turnbull, Miss 

Polly A Baldwin, Liz And Paul Banks,  

 
 

 

SITE:  
 

This site is located towards the northern end of Kirkbymoorside, and at the northern end of Manor 
Vale Lane.  Manor Vale Lane runs through the application site and becomes a single track road which 

provides vehicular access to the Kirkbymoorside Golf Club (located further north of the application 

site). 
 

The application site was previously used as North Yorkshire County Council offices associated with 
the Kirkbymoorside Area Highways depot operations.  The site also comprises a former quarry.  

Various buildings and structures occupy the eastern part of the site which lies beneath a cliff face.  

These buildings consist of offices, stores and garaging, whilst to the north of the buildings is a hard-
surfaced car park.  At present that site is derelict, and with the exception of the roadway, it  has  

security fencing around its inner sides. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

To the west of the application site, are two community halls, one of which is used as a Scout Hut and 
the second of which is a Band Hall. The Band Hall has recently been granted planning permission to 

extend onto the site occupied by the Scout Hut to create a Concert Hall. 

 
Residential development is located on top of the cliff to the west of the application site.  To the east of 

the application site is further residential development.  To the south, there are dwellings of varying 

styles located on Manor Vale Lane.  These properties comprise the approach to the site from the town. 
 

The site lies immediately within the development limit for the town but to the north of the 
Kirkbymoorside Conservation Area.  The land  immediately to the north is within the Area of High 

Landscape Value (Fringe of the North York Moors), and contains a designated Site of Importance for 

Nature Conservation and Ancient Woodland. 
 

An area to the north-east and immediately adjacent but outside the application site is designated as an 

Scheduled Ancient Monument (Neville Castle)   
 

PROPOSAL: 
 
This is an Outline planning application which seeks outline planning permission for only the proposed 

Access, Layout, and  Scale of the development. External Appearance and Landscaping are proposed 

to be Reserved Matters.  
 

The proposal is for 6no. 3 bed dwellings, arranged as a pair of 3no. terraced dwellings. All of the 

dwellings are in the form of frontage development which runs along the eastern side of the roadway, 
with a central access to the Golf Club running through the application site. 

 

The 6no. dwellings each measure 6.9m in width and 8m in depth and are 4.8m to the eaves and 8.3m 
to the ridge heights. As stated above, the external appearance of these proposed dwellings is not 

submitted for consideration at this stage. 
 

The application is accompanied by the following reports: 

 

• Planning Statement; 

• Landscape and Visual Appraisal; 

• Noise Assessment;  

• Tree Survey; 

• Asbestos Demolition Survey Report; 

• Archaeology assessment; 

• Contaminated Land Report - Phase 2 report; 

• Drainage details; 

• Flood Risk Assessment; 

• Design & Access Statement; and  

• Ecology surveys.   
 

These reports are able to be viewed on the Council's website. 

 

HISTORY: 
 
Recent planning history includes: 

 

2015: Planning application for residential development withdrawn. 

 
2014: Planning application for B1 and B8 use- dismissed on appeal. 

 
2014: Change of use of office to a dwelling refused – dismissed on appeal. 

Page 26



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

2014: Two planning applications for residential development withdrawn. 
 

2013: Demolition Consent granted to demolish the redundant buildings on the site. 

 
2008: Planning permission refused for residential development - dismissed on appeal.  (NOTE: This 

was a larger site than is currently proposed) 

 

POLICY: 
 
National Policy  

 

National Planning Policy Framework 2012 (NPPF) 
National Planning Practice Guidance 2014 (NPPG) 

 

Local Plan Strategy 
 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 
Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP11 - Community Facilit ies and Services 
Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 
Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues  

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy 
 

APPRAISAL: 
 
The main considerations in relation to this application are:- 

 

• The principle of the proposed residential development on this site; 
 

• The siting, scale and design of the proposed scheme; 
 

• Whether the proposed dwellings will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity;  
 

• The impact of the proposed development upon surrounding properties; 
 

• Heritage impacts; 

 

• Affordable housing provision; 

 

• Ecology and protected species; 

 

• Contaminated land and ground stability; 

 

• Archaeology; 

 

• Drainage; 

 

• Flood risk; 

Page 27



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

• The impact upon trees; 
 

• The impact of the proposal upon the landscape designated as an Area of High Landscape 
Value; 

 

• Contamination and ground stability; and 

 

• CIL. 
 

This application is currently under consideration by officers. There are unresolved issues relating to 
noise and the inter-relationship of the proposed residential use and the Band Hall; surface water 

flooding; and residential amenity concerns as a result of its location within this former quarry. 

Additional information from the agent is awaited, At this stage Officers are not in position to provide 
a fully considered report to enable Members to make a decision of this application. However, given 

the history to this site, the level of interest in the application, and its site specific issues, it is 

recommended that Members have the opportunity for a Committee Site Inspection prior to 
determining the application. 

 
It is anticipated the application will be presented to the next available Planning Committee following 

the receipt and consideration of all of the outstanding information. 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Site Inspection   
 

 
Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 
Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 8 

Application No: 16/01775/FUL 
Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs P De Lacey 
Proposal: Change of use of agricultural buildings and land to form camping site to 

include reception, office, farm shop, bike storage and the siting of 14no. 

t imber holiday cabins together with formation of 16no. car parking spaces 
Location: Land East Of Longwood Farm Highfield Lane Nawton Helmsley  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  14 March 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  21 February 2017 
Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Public Rights Of Way No views received to date  

Caravan (Housing) No views received to date  
Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objection - comments made  

Parish Council Concerns relating to increased traffic  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

 
Neighbour responses: Mr Jed Dargan, Peter & Margaret Ives, K Nicholson & 

M Wray, J Renney & Paul Harris, Ms Paula Battersby, 
Mrs Ruth Gordon,  

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION: 
 
The above application was validated on 17th January 2017 and seeks the change of use of agricultural 

buildings and land to form camping site to include reception, office, farm shop, bike storage and the 
siting of 14no. t imber holiday cabins together with formation of 16no. car parking spaces 

 
The site is located outside of the main village of Nawton, approximately 1.3 kilometres to the north of 

the main settlement within the Fringe of the Moors Area of High Landscape Value. It  is accessed via 

Highfield Lane, which is mainly a single-vehicle width road. 
 

There are sensitivities associated with the location of the site and the development proposed. 

Furthermore, the application has so far resulted in 6 letters of representations and objections. The 
Parish Council also have expressed concerns relating to the increased traffic using Highfield Lane. 

However, the Local Highway Authority have raised no objection to the proposal and have suggested 

that there is a section in a bend in the road (Highfield Lane) close to the site entrance that should be 
provided with a passing place.  

 

At this stage, it is not possible to fully appraise the proposal and to make a final recommendation to 
Members. 

 

It is anticipated that a full report will be brought before Members at Planning Committee on 11th 
April.  However the application has been brought to this Committee Meeting to enable Members to 

consider whether they wish to carry out a site visit  in advance of the next meeting. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Site Inspection   

Page 32

Agenda Item 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 
National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

 

 

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 16/01947/MFUL 

Parish: Thornton-le-Dale Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr Daniel Warrington 

Proposal: Erection of 9no. four bedroom dwellings, 13no. three bedroom dwellings 

and 4no. two bedroom dwellings with associated garaging, parking, 

amenity areas and formation of vehicular access to include demolition of 

existing dwelling and buildings 

Location: Easthill Wilton Road Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 

7QP 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  15 March 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  3 March 2017 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions and comments made  

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Comments made and recommends planning 

condition  

Lead Local Flood Authority Requires further information  

Environmental Health Officer  No comments to date 

Tree & Landscape Officer Comments and recommendations made  

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No objection - comments made  

Countryside Officer Comments made  

Land Use Planning Recommend conditions  

NYM National Parks Object  

Parish Council No objection  

NYM National Parks Object  

Building Control  No comments to date 

 
Neighbour responses: Mrs Diane Stenton, Mr David Bingham, The Occupier, 

Cllr Geoffrey Acomb, Robin & Sue Buckler,  

 

 

INTRODUCTION: 

 

This Major application is for the erection of 26no. dwellings on the eastern periphery of the 

village of Thornton-le-Dale.  The application is the subject of ongoing discussions with 

officers and a final recommendation cannot be made at this point in proceedings. 

 

The LPA has received a number of comments from consultees and from third parties, some of 

which are supporting the application and others which are objecting on a variety of grounds.  

In order to assist Members in making a final decision, it is recommended that the Planning 

Committee carry out a Site Inspection in order to see the site in its context and more fully 

understand the points raised. 

 

It is anticipated that this application will be presented to Committee with a full report on the 

11th April 2017. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Site Inspection  

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 10 

Application No: 16/02004/MFUL 
Parish: Marton Parish Meeting 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr A Turnbull 
Proposal: Erection of a general purpose agricultural building for storage and housing 

of livestock to adjoin north elevation of existing agricultural building 

Location: Whitethorn Farm Marton YO62 6PF 
 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  21 March 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  23 March 2017 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Public Rights Of Way No views received to date  

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  
Parish Council No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE:  

 
Whitethorn Farm is an established farmstead located within the wider open countryside, 

approximately 1.4 kilometres to the north west of the village of Normanby, 1.5 kilometres to the south 

west of the village of Marton.  The site is accessed off Malton Road. There is a Public Right of Way 
that runs through the main farmstead (a bridleway) east/west west/east. A footpath runs north/south 

south/north to the north of the farmstead, with a further bridleway to the south of the farmstead 

running north/south south/north.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of a general purpose agricultural building for storage and housing of livestock to adjoin north 

elevation of existing agricultural building. 
 

The application is to be determined by Planning Committee as the floor area of the building exceeds 

1000 square metres (1042 square metres). The proposed building will  measure  42.7 metres in width, 
24.4 metres in depth,  4.9 metres to the eaves and 8.5 metres to the ridge. It will be constructed of 

concrete panels up to 2 metres with Yorkshire Board cladding above this, with dark grey fibre cement 

roof sheets.  
 

HISTORY: 
 
The planning history at the site includes: 

 

• 07/00582/AGNOT - Agricultural notification determined and granted 19.07.2007 - Erection 
of open-sided dutch barn for storage of hay and straw 

 

• 16/01685/AGNOT - Agricultural notification determined and granted 16.11.2016 - Erection 

of a general purpose agricultural storage building 
 

 

 

Page 114

Agenda Item 10



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

POLICY: 
 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 
Policy SP9 - Land Based Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 
Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2012) 

 
Chapter 3. Supporting a prosperous rural economy  

 

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 
 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main considerations in relation to this application are 

 

i.  The Principle of Development 
ii.  Size, scale and design of the proposed building 

iii.  Impact upon the wider open countryside landscape 

iv. Highway safety 
v.  Impact upon neighbour amenity 

vii.  Other matters 

viii.  Conclusion  
 

i .  The Principle  of Development 
 

Policy SP9 (The Land Based and Rural Economy) of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy is 

supportive of new buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working 
countryside, including farming. Furthermore, Section 3 (Supporting a prosperous rural economy) of 

the National Planning Policy Framework is supportive of sustainable growth and expansion of all 

types of business and enterprise in rural areas, through well designed new buildings.  
 

The agent has stated the following with regard to the agricultural enterprise: 

 
The applicants are mainly cattle and pig farmers with arable land. They farm about 380 acres of 

arable and grassland surrounding the farm at Whitethorn with all work done by Mr Turnbull and his 

son. They have approximately 120 suckler cows which calf all year around with an additional 110 
fattening and store cattle on farm at all times. All 200 plus cattle are housed, calved and fattened at 

the farm. They currently have 280 bed and breakfast pigs on the farm which are housed in cattle 

buildings when stock are at grazing or between calving patterns. The proposed building will not only 
be used for machinery, hay and straw storage but will be used for calving cattle, store cattle (after 

weaning age) and bed and breakfast pigs when cattle are at grazing. 
 

It is considered that the principle of an agricultural storage building and housing of livestock in this 

location and within the farmstead is considered acceptable. 
 

ii .  Size , scale  and design of the proposed building 
 
This siting of the proposed building would be read in the context of  existing agricultural buildings 

within the site, as it  will adjoin a building that was approved under the 2016 Agricultural Notification 

to the immediate south. The ground works for this building have been completed, but it  is yet to be 
erected.   

Page 115



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

The proposed building  is of a similar scale to the existing buildings within the farmstead in terms of 
height, depth and width. The design of the building is typical of a modern agricultural building, 

comprising enclosed sides under a pitched roof.  The Yorkshire Boarding and dark grey roof will also 

ensure that the building will be integrated into the surrounding landscape and relate to the existing 
buildings on the site.  

 

In view of the proposed building being within close relationship to the existing agricultural buildings 
on the site along with its Yorkshire Boarding and dark grey roof colouration, the development is 

considered to be acceptable in this location. 

 

iii .  Impact upon the wider open countryside landscape 
 
Policy SP13 (Landscapes) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy states: 

 

Landscape Character: 
Development proposals should contribute to the protection and enhancement of distinctive elements 

of landscape character that are the result of historical and cultural influences, natural features and 

aesthetic qualities including: 
 

· The pattern and presence of distinctive landscape features and natural elements (including field 

boundaries, woodland, habitat types, landforms, topography and watercourses) 
· Visually sensitive skylines, hill and valley sides 

 

There will be limited, distant views of the proposed building from Malton Road. There will be closer 
views of the proposed building from the Public Rights of Way that are in close proximity to the 

farmstead and run through the farmstead. However, these views of the building will be within the 

context of an established group of buildings and the proposal is not considered to be detrimental to the 
character of the wider open countryside.  

 

iv. Highway safety 
 

The Highway Authority considers the existing vehicular access onto Malton Road to be acceptable, 
and has no objection to the proposal.   

 

There is a Public Right of Way that runs through the main farmstead (a bridleway) east/west 
west/east. A footpath runs north/south south/north to the north of the farmstead, with a further 

bridleway to the south of the farmstead running north/south south/north. However, the proposed 

building will not impinge upon these Public Rights of Way.  

 

v.  Impact upon neighbour amenity 
 
The closest residential property to the site (not within the applicants ownership) is Greenacres, 

approximately 250 metres to the east of where the proposed building will be sited. The property of 

Greenacres was approved as an agricultural workers dwelling in 1986. However, in 1998, approval 
was granted to retain the dwelling of Greenacres without compliance with agricultural occupancy 

condition.  
 

The proposed building is not considered to have a material adverse effect upon the amenity of the 

property of Greenacres. This is in terms of being overbearing in presence, cause loss of light or loss of 
privacy. It  is noted that the building will house some livestock including calving cattle, store cattle 

(after weaning age) and bed and breakfast pigs when cattle are at grazing. There is the potential for 

the livestock to cause issues regarding noise and odour. However, the applicants operate an 
established agricultural livestock enterprise, with there currently being a number of livestock being 

housed on the site.  The manure from the livestock will be stored within the proposed building and 

will then be spread on the applicants land which is considered acceptable in this location. If there are 
any future complaints regarding noise and odour will be dealt  with by Environmental Health Officers.  

Page 116



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

The proposal  is therefore considered to comply with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 
Strategy. 

 

There has been no response from the occupier of Greenacres or any other third parties with regard to 
the proposal.  

 

vii.  Other matters 
 

There has been no response from the Parish Council with regard to the proposal. 

 

viii.  Conclusion  

 
In light of the above considerations, the erection of a general purpose agricultural building for storage 

and housing of livestock is considered to satisfy the relevant policy criteria outlined within Policies 

SP9, SP13, SP16, SP19 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy and the National 
Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to the 

following conditions.  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 
  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 
  

 SITE LAYOUT PLAN - AW & A Turnbull - dated 20th December 2016. 
 FLOOR PLAN AND ELEVATIONS - Scale 1:200 dated 20th December 2016.  

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

Background Papers: 
  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 11 

Application No: 16/01165/73A 
Parish: Marton Parish Meeting 

Appn. Type: Non Compliance with Conditions 

Applicant: Mr Colin Coote 
Proposal: Removal of Condition 07 of approval 3/85/38A/FA dated 01.09.1993 

(agricultural occupancy condition) 

Location: The Quarrels Back Lane Marton Kirkbymoorside YO62 6RD 
 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  13 September 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 August 2016 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Parish Council No objection  

 
Neighbour responses: R Chambers,  
 

 

 

SITE:  

 
The application site is located to the western side of Back Lane Marton to the south of another 

dwelling known as Rise Lea.  To the west of the site is The Gables and its associated farmstead. 

 
The Quarrels is located in open countryside outside of the  ‘saved’ village development limits as 

identified in The Ryedale Local Plan. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

This application seeks planning permission for the removal of Condition 07 of approval Ref. 
3/85/38A/FA dated 01.09.1993 which states: 

 
The occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted together with the residential occupation of The 

Gables shall be limited to persons solely or last employed in the locality in agriculture (as defined in 

Section 336 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990) or in forestry in the locality, or by a widow 
or widower of such a person; or by dependents residing  with such a person. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

The planning permission in question was granted on 1
st
 September 1993 and was justified on the basis 

of the need for a second agricultural workers dwelling at the farmstead known locally as The Gables 
Back Lane Marton 

 

POLICY: 
 

NPPF 2012 

NPPG 2014 
 

Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy 
 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 -  Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 
Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour  

 

Page 126

Agenda Item 11



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Restrictions - 
 

Paragraph g  
 
(1)  The lifting of occupancy restrictions will be carefully6 considered on a case by case basis. The 

capability and suitability of the unit  being occupied as a permanent residential unit together with any 

changes in circumstances which mean the occupancy restriction is no longer applicable, will be 
carefully considered. 

 
(ii)  changes in the scale and character of farming/forestry/other enterprise may affect the longer-term 

requirement for dwellings that are subject to an occupancy condition. for an agricultural occupancy 

condition to be lifted, up to date documentary evidence provided by an independent consultant will be 
required showing that there is no demand for the accommodation it  its current status. This would be 

established over a period of at least 12 months through the advertisement of the property by agents 

specialising in the sale of agricultural land and property in the Ryedale area, with regular 
advertisement within agricultural journals and local papers. The property advertisement must refer to 

the existence of the agricultural occupancy condition, and for the property to be priced accordingly. 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
This application was submitted in July 2016 . Whilst  the application was accompanied by some 
information from the applicant there was no indication or any evidence submitted to demonstrate that 

steps had been taken to advertise the property at a price that reflects the agricultural occupancy 

condition as ordinarily required by the adopted development  plan. 
 

The applicant was advised of this by the case office and also again in writing on 27
th
 October 2016 

following a meeting with the case officer  and the Head of Planning . To assist  Members a copy of the 
letter of 27.10.2016 is appended to this report setting out the views of officers and a potential way 

forward. 
 

No further contact was received from the applicant until early January 2017 at which point it  became 

apparent that whilst  the applicant had taken some steps with a local estate agent to value the property 
that no steps at all had been taken to  market the property at a price to establish whether or not there is 

still a need for a dwelling for a qualifying agricultural worker in the locality.  

 
A further email in response to the applicant was sent suggesting  that he reconsider his position (see 

attached copy email) . Notwithstanding this advice the applicant he restated his view that he wishes 

the application to be determined as submitted for the reasons stated in correspondence. The applicants 
case can be seen in full on the working planning file and the key documents are also copied for 

Members information. 

 
The policy position in respect of determining applications to lift occupancy conditions is set out 

earlier in this report. Section 38(6) of the Town  and Country Planning  Compulsory Purchase Act 

2004 require that all decisions must be made in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  

 
The applicant has submitted  extensive arguments including details of his medical conditions but 

appears to base much of his case in relation to an earlier decision of the Planning Committee on 3
rd
  

June 2014 Ref 13/00880/73A which related to the variation of an agricultural occupancy condition 
relating to a property in the Parish of Normanby. That particular case was in fact approved by 

Committee for the variation  of the existing agricultural occupancy condition and its replacement 

with a local occupancy condition. The particular circumstances of the case were differed from those 
put forward in this current case. It is also of particular note that the applicant during discussions has 

refused to contemplate a variation of the occupancy rather than seeking its complete removal. 

 
 

Page 127



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

In the absence of any exercise to establish whether there remains a local need for the dwelling for an 

agricultural or forestry worker capable of complying with the condition the current application 
remains completely at odds with the requirements of the development plan. 

 

Other matters  
 

The application has been the subject of consultation locally and the following responses received. 

 
Occupier of The Gables 

 
"I write to strongly object to Planning Application 16/01165/73A. 

 

The Quarrals, Back Lane, Marton was originally refused as a dwelling on 14.02.1989, but was later 
approved as an Agricultural Workers Dwelling on 31.01.1992. 

 

I cannot see any justification for the removal of Condition 7 of approval 3/85/38A and I would draw 
your attention to Policy SP21(g) of The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy where it  is stated that for 

an agricultural occupancy condition to be lifted, up to date documentary evidence provided by an 

independent consultant will be required showing that there is no demand for the accommodation in its 
current status. This would be established over a period of at least 12 months through the 

advertisement of the property by agents specialising in the sale of agricultural land and property in the 

Ryedale area, with regular advertisements within agricultural journals and local papers. The property 
must refer to the existence of the agricultural occupancy condition, and for the property to be priced 

accordingly. I have seen no evidence of this. 

 
I ask that this Planning Application is either withdrawn until such evidence has been provided to the 

above or refused." 

 
Marton Parish Council  

 
"With reference to your letter dated 19 July 2016, regarding the application by Mr. Colin Coote of 

The Quarrels, Back Lane, Marton, I am writing on behalf of the planning committee of Marton Parish 

Meeting to advise you that we have no objection to the removal of the agricultural occupancy 
condition. Indeed, given the scarcity of full-time local agricultural employment and the desirability of 

Mr. Coote being able to find alternative employment, we would actively support this application." 

The comments of third parties are raising completely opposite views on the application as submitted . 
The views of officers however remains strongly of the view that the lift ing of the condition on the 

basis of the current arguments levelled by the applicant is unjustified and clearly contrary to the 

requirements of the development plan. 
 

In the circumstances the application is recommended for refusal.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal   
 

1 Inadequate justification has been made to warrant the lift ing of the agricultural occupancy 
condition from the dwelling known as The Quarrels Back Lane Marton. In the absence of 

adequate justification the application is contrary to the requirements of Policy SP 21 of the 
adopted Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 2013 and there are no material considerations to 

warrant a decision other than in accordance with the development plan. 

  

 

Background Papers: 
  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



The Quarrels
Ryedale District Council Back Lane
Ryedale House Marton
Old Malton Road Sinnington
Malton YORK
YO17 7HH YO62 6RD

22nd February 2017

Dear Mr Housden

Planning Reference 16/01165/73A  Removal of Condition 07 of approval 3/85/38A/FA dated 01.09.1993
(agricultural occupancy condition) The Quarrels Back Lane Marton Kirkbymoorside YO62 6RD 

I expect RDC provide me with a detailed response to all of the 9 questions found on page 7 of this letter 
before Friday 3th March 2017. I do expect this letter to be added onto the planning website with all of my
other letters. 

I have assumed the official RDC reply will be provided by Mr Housden.   I provided you with my 
official complaint against RDC's planning department in relation to the above application dated 2/2/17.

My understanding of the 2012-2027 Ryedale Plan and the planning process has allowed me to deal with 
my own application.  The information presented to RDC within my letter dated the 27th September 2016 
has not been challenged therefore it has been accepted by RDC as being factually correct.

Precedent
In English Law there is 'case law' which is a term used as 'the law as established by the outcome of 
former cases'.   As is required within English Law, for an established precedent to be binding on a case 
there has to be sufficient similarities with the merits and issues of both the case being presided over and 
the case that established 'said' precedent.

I remind RDC planning department that as a matter of fact all planning decisions constitute a precedent, 
planning decisions are based on interpretation and application of policy and by precedent already set by 
previous application of planning policy.

While all planning decisions are precedent some do become 'leading cases' or 'landmark decisions' that 
are available to be cited regularly.  

From when I had my site meeting with the planning officer in September 2016 RDC have refused to 
acknowledge the existence of the 'Established Planning Policy' relating to SP21 of the Ryedale Plan 
through their Approval decision on the 3/6/2014, such behaviour is inexcusable.  I have concluded that 
this refusal is most likely due to the planning department fearing that this will become a 'landmark 
decision' in Ryedale that is cited especially often in support of planning applications to remove 
agricultural occupancy restrictions from agricultural workers dwellings.  If council officials continue to 
ignore 'established planning policy' this will further undermine planning policy and confirm these 
officials are completely unsuitable to retain their employment within RDC.   

In my opinion RDC should be obligated to Publicise and Index planning decisions in a way such as by 
'category' that would allow easier access for the general public to find any such precedent that expands 
on the present 'adopted' planning policy.  Such Indexing would be a major supplement to the Ryedale 
Plan and it would allow for greater consistency with planning decision making throughout the lifespan 
of the Ryedale Plan.  It may also deter erroneous behaviour from council officials.  Regardless of the 
whether these decisions are index or not, policy is still established.

1 Page 131



My Application
I have always claimed throughout this application that RDC 'Established' a precedent with their 3/6/2014
interpretation, application and decisions with the 'Eastfield Lodge' application and that it was this 
important single fact that allowed this present application to be made without the need for a 12 month 
marketing exercise.  

This 'established precedent' could be best described as providing a more explicit interpretation and 
application of policy SP21 than that provided by the actual wording of policy SP21 within the Ryedale 
Plan.   

My understanding of the 'Eastfield Lodge' decision provided on the 3/6/2014 by the councils planning 
committee confirms the councils stated official interpretation and application of the Ryedale Plan policy 
SP21 for the lifetime of the Ryedale Plan, which is correctly understood by the 'layman' as now being an
'established planning policy' subject to future applications showing sufficient similarities with the merit 
and issues of the 'Eastfield Lodge' application.

I further expand my stated claim of a precedent being set on 3/6/14 when addressing the Eastfield Lodge
application.  

The planning department stated the following reason in their Appraisal to the planning committee why a 
12 month marketing exercise to establish a 'need' for the property was not required from the applicant of 
Eastfield Lodge,

''In this particular case this has not occurred.  However, this particular application differs from 
most other similar proposals for the lifting of occupancy restrictions.''

The planning department also provide within their Appraisal for Eastfield Lodge to the planning 
committee the following statement which is a direct reference to SP21 g),

'The policy identifies the criterion when an agricultural restriction may be lifted.  Specifically it 
is imperative that ''the lifting of occupancy restrictions will be carefully considered on a case by 
case basis.'''

RDC Approved the 'Eastfield Lodge' application without the applicant having to provide a 12 month 
marketing exercise, this was found to be acceptable practice by both RDC planning officers and 
councillors as the Appraisal submitted from the Planning Department to the planning committee 
recommended 'Approval' thereby providing 'established planning policy' through the Approval decision, 
there can be no other explanation.  

Any fair minded person would surmise from the aforementioned actions of the council when dealing 
with the 'Eastfield Lodge' application that this was how the council would respond to all future 
applications that were sufficiently similar in merit and issues.

The 'Eastfield Lodge' application did not only provide the decision that established a precedent that 
removed any claimed mandatory requirement for a marketing exercise (subject to sufficient similarities 
between applications) to be provided before an approval could be provided, it also confirmed how to the
planning department would respond to similar applications.   RDC planning department supported the 
'Eastfield Lodge' application and they identified the difference of said application to that of similar 
proposals.  This precedent had the full support of Mr Housden.

All of the decisions and actions of the planning department and planning committee have been 
established and can not be overturned or expunged from record.  These decisions are established 
planning policy and where there are sufficient similarities with their own application it is only fair that 
all applicants have the right to highlight this fact in support of their own applications and relevant 
established decisions should be binding on the committee.  The planning department are attempting to 
prevent the 'Eastfield Lodge' decision being used in support of my application. 

2 Page 132



The planning department are blatantly refusing to accept established planning policy through precedent 
at their choosing, this confirms without exception that RDC are guilty of using planning policy 
selectively against individual applicants, I deem this to be discriminatory behaviour and a blatant 'abuse 
of position' by all those involved throughout the planning process. 

RDC planning department have proven 'without doubt' that they are untrustworthy and all of their 
decisions should be scrutinised by everyone involved.    
RDC should be working toward greater consistency with their planning decisions, this can not occur  
while they refuse to accept all of their planning decisions as 'established planning policy' and while they 
allow there planning and legal departments to discriminate against individual applicants.

Much more detailed information has been presented to RDC about my application than the detailed 
information provided for the 'Eastfield Lodge' application.

I have proven 'Without Doubt' to RDC that there are sufficient similarities with the merits and issues 
between my present application and the 'Eastfield Lodge' application for the 'established planning policy'
determined on the 3/6/14 to be binding on both the district council's planning department and planning 
committee.  This proves that there is no requirement for me to prove by a 12 month marketing exercise 
'that there is no demand for the accommodation' as is inferred by SP21 g)(ii).  

I challenge RDC planning and legal departments to provide me with information that disputes my claim 
of these 2 applications having sufficient similarities in merit and issue! 

Reply to Mr Housden's email response dated 3/2/17 to my official complaint dated 2/2/17.

1. Mrs Smith represented RDC planning department and applied council policy to fulfil her duties as 
a planning officer.

2. The advice provided to me by the planning department deliberately ignored 'established planning 
policy' that was set by precedent on the 3/6/16 that negated the need for me to demonstrate that 
there in no demand in the locality.......

3. Mr Housden clearly implies that I will be treated differently to the 'Eastfield Lodge' applicant as his
recommendation will be 'unfavourable'. This confirms my previous stated views that there are 
individuals within RDC that hold a grudge against me and are deliberately attempting to keep me 
unemployed until I retire in 14 years time to punish me!

4. The claim that there are interested 3rd parties surprises me as my property is not for sale and has 
never been advertised and no approach to by my property has been made by any 3rd party.  The 
objection from the adjacent Gables Farm owner Mr R Chambers was in all probability made in 
retaliation to my previous objections and observations I provided to RDC with his 2 previous 
planning applications, nothing more.  My objections were valid and supported by relevant planning
policy.  The most recent involved replacing a livestock building with a larger newer version.  I did 
not object to this replacement as reported by planning officers, in fact I stated I supported the 
planning proposal and proposed it was extended, my only objection was in relation to the potential 
housing of pigs in this replacement building.  The prevention of the housing of pigs in said building
should have been automatically addressed by the planning department, yet it was ignored.  
Fortunately I brought this issue to the immediate attention of the planning department and it was 
finally addressed within the application.  Housing of pigs is prohibited in this new building and in 
all probability Mr Chambers holds me personally responsible for this financial restriction  on his 
business.    Regarding my 1st objection to Mr Chambers converting the adjacent garage and brick 
building to the farmhouse, my objection was based on the fact that the proposed plans constituted a
'self-contained unit'.  RDC planning department refused the application as they had same view.  It 
went to appeal where the Inspectorate determined that the proposed application be subject to a 
planning condition that to prevent it from becoming a 'self-contained' dwelling and that it would be 

3 Page 133



'Ancillary' to the farmhouse.  I have to assume RDC have accepted that decision and it has been 
accepted as an established planning policy!  Both objection were justified on planning grounds.

5. Regarding the policy SP21 Mr R Chambers claims in support of his objection, unfortunately due to 
the fact RDC do not publicise or index their planning decisions (precedent) to allow for easy access
by the general public, objectors like Mr Chambers are unaware that the interpretation and 
application of policy SP21 had been expanded with the 2014 'Eastfield Lodge' decision thereby 
negating his objection completely.

6. Your claim that my complaints regarding interpretation of planning policy and ignoring my 
submissions 'are simply not accepted' confirm your arrogance on this issue.  1).  RDC persistently 
refuse to accept the 2014 'Eastfield Lodge' decision as a precedent and as such is 'established 
planning policy'.  2).  You fail to provide evidence that supports your claim that a 3rd party planning
application for a dwelling needing to be sited over one and a quarter miles from my property due to
livestock welfare needs that I have no connection to whatsoever 'complicates' my application.         
NPPF.  187 states - 'Local planning authorities should look for solutions rather than problems'.  
The planning department intentionally fabricated a problem from an issue unconnected to my 
application, which policy supports this conduct?

7. You standby the claim that in return for removing my present agricultural occupancy condition, 
RDC panning department are entitled to expect something in return for this privilege.  That being 
the imposing of a 'Local Needs' occupancy condition to replace my present condition.

8. At the time the planning department made this request at the site meeting in September 2016 I was 
caught unaware that this would be included within councils planning policy or deemed as RDC 
common practice, so I objected  on the spot, knowing that limiting my ability to work only within 
the parishes of Marton, Normanby, Edstone and Sinnington would hinder my ability to find suitable
work and it would reduce the value of my property considerably by limiting future owners to just a 
few due to the requirement as stated within 'local needs' conditions.  

9. The planning department had to have been fully aware of the serious consequences to their 
proposal, including the considerable reduction in my property value which would in my opinion 
have provided a much greater reduction to that which my present agricultural occupancy condition 
reduces my property value, yet it still attempted to acquire a 'local needs' condition.  I can't put an 
actual figure on prospective purchasers of my property had it been subject to a 'local needs' 
condition as it is clear to me that the 'local needs' condition is ambiguous in its wording and far 
more restrictive than it initially appears.  

10. I request that the planning department provide me with an approximate number of eligible 
individuals within the parishes of Marton, Sinnington, Normanby & Edstone that would be eligible 
to purchase my property at his present time if it were subject to a 'local needs' condition?  Will that 
number be greater than 25 individuals and if so by how many.   

11. I also require RDC provide me with a figure as to how much RDC would expect my property be 
reduced from its present minimum unfettered valuation of £360,000 to facilitate a sale? 

12. As for your complaint that you only received my reply two and a half months later, there were 
reasons. 1)  I became ill in early November and was unable to address the issues required in my 
reply. 2)  I had to reply in detail to the claim that a 3rd party application complicated my 
application, these details involved making myself familiar with the applicants application, appraisal
and farm enterprise.  3)  For reasons best known to the planning department Mrs Smith gave me a 
10 day deadline to confirm I would provide a 12 month marketing exercise which was a decision 
for the DWP and the Ryedale Jobcentre manager.  4) I knew I could not meet this deadline so I was 
in no rush to provide the reply, I did not want to potentially ruin Christmas so there was no rush to 
have my application in before the end of the year.  5) I found it arrogant that the planning 
department delay determination of my application and then when it suits them request information 
is provided within a 10 day time limit.  This can only be to rush the applicant and receive 
incomplete or factually incorrect information so that its credibility can be easily challenge at a later 
date.

13. I also require an explanation from RDC as to why the planning department changed their approach 
to my application when they became aware that they would not be receiving anything in return for 

4 Page 134



the removal of the agricultural occupancy condition as they had previously requested.  This change 
in approach was a direct response to the information I provided within my letter dated 27/9/16.  
The planning department would not post my letter onto the planning portal as is usual practice, they
would not respond to my approaches, it took to the middle of October before I was able to make 
contact with the planning department who informed me that an application from a 3rd party 
complicated my application.  RDC would not facilitate my request of a  meeting with senior 
council officials and council members.  The claim of a 3rd party complicating my application can 
not be validated as a genuine or viable reason for refusal.  The planning department refused to 
substantiate this claim at the time by refusing to provide supporting planning policy or guidance 
that allowed them to do this as it contradicts the general principles and requirements of policy 
SP19.  This proves decisions making by council officials has been influenced by a personal bias 
against myself. 

14. As a 'layman' I would expect the policy position of RDC planning department to be limited to 
policies SP19 & SP21.  As for key material planning considerations, I would expect the planning 
department informs the members that my application does have sufficient similarities with the 
'Eastfield Lodge' application for it to be judged and supported in an identical manner to the 
'Eastfield Lodge' application.  Members are reminded that their 3/6/2014 planning committee 
decision for 'Eastfield Lodge' established planning policy that negated the need for any marketing 
exercise be provided where applications can be identified as sharing sufficient similarities with the 
merits and issues of the 'Eastfield Lodge' application.  On a matter of fact, RDC planning 
department have only ever highlighted SP21 and the claim of the need of a marketing exercise as 
the only policy in support of their present stance wanting to refuse my application.  

15. Mr Housden is fully aware that Planning Inspectorates have determined that it is not a mandatory 
requirement to provide a marketing exercise for an Appeal to be successful.   In a number of appeal
decisions, most notably that relating to Heddon Oak House, Crowcombe, Taunton (Ref: 
APP/H3320/A/03/1123215), Inspectors have taken the view that, even where policies require 
marketing or evidence that the property cannot be sold and no marketing or inadequate marketing 
has been undertaken, there can still be sufficient evidence to establish that there is very little 
likelihood that the restricted occupancy dwelling could be sold or let to a qualifying occupier to 
meet a local agricultural need. Such evidence is in my view present in this case.” The 
aforementioned information is extracted from Planning Statement, Removal of agricultural 
occupancy condition ,Old Quarry House Morkery Lane, Castle Bytham, Grantham dated January 
2016.  

16. I have submitted sufficient information previously that provides a marketing exercise of a kind 
even though it is not required.  1).  18 years of continued unemployment proves without doubt that 
there is no demand for me as an agricultural worker in the locality.    2).  RDC planning department
have failed to produce any planning case law that demands that I dispose of my property against 
my wishes.  If it existed they would have used it against the applicant of 'Eastfield Lodge'.    3).  
My property has been valued by a reputable agent at a minimum £360,000 as an unfettered 
property, but with the agricultural conditions still attached it is reduced by one third to a minimum 
value of £240,000.  This valuation is still well above the financial capabilities of the highest paid 
agricultural worker as based on average wages as has been proven in previous correspondence.   4).
Planning policy dictates that where an agricultural workers dwelling is required near any 
settlement/village, policy expects workers accommodation will be facilitated within that 
settlement/village.  So all future needs for agricultural workers dwellings in the lifetime of the 
Ryedale Plan will be facilitated in local villages such as Marton or on the farm itself if the livestock
welfare needs are proven.  5).  My property is situated on the edge of Marton village meaning that 
there are cheaper properties within the village that are available to meet the future needs of other 
agricultural workers in the locality that will be free from occupancy restrictions.  6  ).  A property 
with a similar value to my property that is also subject to an agricultural occupancy that is located 
about ¾ mile from The Quarrels has been advertised for the last 12 months.  This property has not 
been sold and to my knowledge no genuine interest has been shown. 

5 Page 135



Other key considerations submitted to members should include, 
17. My application is supported by Marton parish committee. 
18. This application has only been done at the specific request of the DWP with the intention to return 

myself back into gainful employment and reduce the welfare bill to UK taxpayers.
19. I suffer from 3 skeletal conditions which have been medically diagnosed which prevent me from 

participating in normal physically strenuous activities associated with day to day agricultural work.
I need to be allowed to return back into gainful employment in a type of work that requires less 
strenuous activities and can allow me to manage my overall health on a day to day basis. 

20. I have been unemployed since 11/9/98.  I should not be obliged to remain unemployed any longer 
by virtue of the present agricultural occupancy condition.

21. Planning Policy Statement 7: Sustainable Development in Rural Areas states 'Such dwellings, and 
others in the countryside with an occupancy condition attached, should not be kept vacant, nor 
should their present occupants be unnecessarily obliged to remain in occupation simply by virtue 
of planning conditions restricting occupancy which have outlived their usefulness'.  Whilst it is 
recognised that this guidance has now been withdrawn following the publication of the National 
Planning Policy Framework in 2012, the absence of equivalent guidance within the NPPF, has 
resulted in practitioners, and decision makers, including Planning Inspectors, placing some 
continuing reliance upon the principles outlined in the document. 

22. The condition has outlived its useful purpose, this usefulness was removed 18 years ago by the 
owners of The Gables farm. 

23. Accordingly, there are no compelling reasons to retain the condition on The Quarrels.
24. The Gables farmhouse has been extended and altered to provide additional accommodation.  Such 

accommodation will readily provide for any future need for a 2nd worker to be resident on The 
Gables farm, otherwise accommodation should be provided from within the village.  

25. I have no intention of selling or moving from our family home.

The only policy available to RDC planning department as an excuse to claim my application should be 
refused is SP21, this explains why RDC repeatedly claim I need to provide a 12 month marketing 
exercise and why the planning department continues to refuse to accept the 3/6/2014 planning decision 
that provided 'established planning policy' in policy SP21 of the Ryedale Plan.
I have proven that the 3/6/2014 'Eastfield Lodge' planning committee decision set precedent that has to 
be accepted as 'established planning policy' as I have stated throughout this letter and my entire 
application.  

I would also expect the planning department appraisal to members include the following policy.  

SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
When considering development proposals the Council will take a positive approach that reflects the 
presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework. It will always work proactively with applicants jointly to find solutions which mean   that 
proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure development that improves the economic, 
social and environmental conditions in the area.
Planning applications that accord with the policies in this Local Plan (and, where relevant, with polices 
in Neighbourhood Plans) will be approved without delay, unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise.
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of date at the time of 
making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless material considerations indicate 
otherwise – taking into account whether:
  Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 

benefits, when assessed against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework taken as a 
whole; or
  Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted.

6 Page 136



I can confirm that the above planning policy SP19 has been ignored by RDC planning officers.   Your 
officers have failed to take the required 'positive approach that reflects the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy Framework'.  

The Ryedale Plan states implicitly in SP19 that  'It will always work proactively with applicants jointly 
to find solutions which mean that proposals can be approved wherever possible, and to secure 
development that improves the economic, social and environmental conditions in the area'.  RDC's 
planning department have not worked proactively throughout my application as it's policy claims it will 
always do.  

The only proposal from RDC was the replacing of my present occupancy restriction with a 'Local Needs'
occupancy condition which I addressed in previous correspondence as worthless etc.  

I remind you that I have been the only proactive participant throughout this application, it has been 
myself who has contacted the planning department for information.

1. I now require RDC to provide me with the specific planning policy that supported the imposing 
of 'local needs' conditions on existing inhabited dwellings that have previously had Approved 
planning permission?

2. I now require RDC explain why they requested I accept the imposing of a 'local needs' 
occupancy condition in return for removing my agricultural occupancy condition?

3. I request confirmation of the specific common planning policy that exists within Ryedale District
Council that supported this aforementioned request?  

4. Who instructed or advised council members that 'local needs' occupancy conditions could be 
used to replace other existing occupancy conditions?

5. Explain why no member addressed this issue prior to my involvement?
6. I require confirmation of the specific policy or guidance that supports the claim from the 

planning department that the Hillside Farm application complicated my application?
7. I request that RDC provide me with an approximate number of eligible individuals within the 

parishes of Marton, Sinnington, Normanby & Edstone that they consider as eligible to purchase 
my property at this present time if it were subject to a 'local needs' condition? 

8. I require RDC provide me with a figure as to how much RDC would expect my property be 
reduced from its present minimum unfettered valuation of £360,000 to facilitate a sale if it was 
subject to a 'local needs' occupancy condition? 

9. Confirm the action taken by RDC to address the issues raised in my letter dated 27/9/16?

I knew after I had read the Ryedale Plan through for the first time that 'local needs' occupancy conditions
could only be applied primarily to new build dwellings, it is fair to say that council members should also
have been able to come to the same opinion as myself after they had read the Ryedale Plan for the 1st 
time.  I have no alternative but to concur that council members have either been deliberately deceived by
council officials and possibly other members into their erroneous belief that the use of 'local needs' 
conditions as had been applied against the applicant of 'Eastfield Lodge' was acceptable planning 
practice, or that the members have been complicit in this deception and have deliberately agreed to use 
said 'local needs' conditions to the direct financial detriment of home owners.

I look forward to the reason the planning department present to members to justify their personal 
preference for a Refusal.  I will be interested to know how RDC planning department will have been 
able to distinguish the difference between my application and the 'Eastfield Lodge' application.  

I can only assume your reason for refusal will be something along the lines of claiming that, 
• I have failed to provide a marketing exercise as required by SP21 g)(ii) and therefore failed to 

prove there is no demand for The Quarrels property in its present status, therefore the impact of 
granting permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed 

7 Page 137



against the policies in the National Planning Policy Framework taken as a whole; or  Specific 
policies in that Framework indicate that development should be restricted as required by SP19.

For the council to be of the above opinion would mean they will have been unreasonable, ignored policy
and therefore made an arbitrary judgement, misinterpreted policy SP21 g)(ii) as meaning mandatory 
which is contrary to established council policy from 3/6/14, ignored all of the supporting information 
provided, refused to judge application on a 'case by case' basis as required by SP21 g)(i), will still want 
to impose a 'local needs' condition in return.   I repeat, the 3/6/2014 'Eastfield Lodge' decision 
established that RDC planning committee adopted and applied a specific meaning to policy SP21 g).  I 
do not apologies for repeating the aforementioned established policy from 3/6/14 as it is fact.  

I am of the opinion that any council official or member who refuses to accept the 3/6/2014 'Eastfield 
Lodge' decision as 'established policy' should reconsider their position as a council official or member 
and then resign if they refuse to accept the validity of this 'established policy'.  There is no place for 
arbitrary planning decisions or such deceitful behaviour that attempts to provide arbitrary decisions 
within this LPA.  All those involved in such conduct should be removed if they do not leave voluntarily.

You state in his email reply to me dated 15th Feb 2017 @ 10:18AM you state 'I will interpret your 
response in a manner that indicates you do not intend to advertise the property in accordance with the 
Council’s normal policy requirements.'

You refer to the 'Council's normal policy requirements' and not 'Council's policy requirements', this 
confirms you do not want my application to be judged using the same planning policy SP21 g)(i) as was 
used to judge the 'Eastfield Lodge' application which resulted in an established planning policy SP21 g). 

So I have to challenge you on this point to explain which part of council policy is 'not normal'.   This 
proves without doubt that there is selective application of planning policy under the stewardship of 
yourself and other RDC officials.

From my understanding of the applicable planning policy SP21 of the Ryedale Plan, policy clearly 
confirms that each application is to be judged on a 'case by case' basis and that advertising the property 
is not a mandatory requirement of SP21 as has been proven by the previous council decision of the 
3/6/2014 in relation to the 'Eastfield Lodge' decision.   Therefore your claim that I am not acting 'in 
accordance with the Council’s normal policy requirements' is factually incorrect and deliberately 
misleading.   On a point of fact, the Planning Inspectorate approve appeals that have not provided a 
marketing exercise as referred to above in Note 15 on Page 5. 

RDC's official stance as stated above by yourself, the head of the planning department in dealing with 
my application gives me serious cause for concern.  The planning departments constant refusal to accept
'established planning policy' based on RDC recent planning decisions is unreasonable and further 
undermines the integrity of the planning process and decidedly promotes 'arbitrary' decision making.

You stated at our meeting on the 26th Oct 2016 that my application was not straight forward due to my 
own personal circumstances surrounding this application and as such applications of this nature need to 
be assessed on a 'case by case' basis by the committee.  At that meeting I was hoping for RDC officials 
to be sincere, your response to my letter dated the 5/1/17 and my attempts to be provided with a 
planning committee judgement date for the 14/2/17 were anything but sincere, so I am still sitting in 
judgement on whether this council are in fact sincere or not.  Proof to the sincerity of RDC officials will 
be determined by the content of the Appraisal they present to the planning committee and whether they 
treat me equal to the 'Eastfield Lodge' applicant. 

8 Page 138



I have reasonably concluded that the planning and legal departments of RDC can not be trusted to 
provide the correct interpretation and application of relevant planning policies.  They have proven 
themselves to be selective, unreasonable, arbitrary and readily available to 'abuse their position'.

I kept reminding RDC that this application should have been Approved by delegatable decision, I knew 
there were serious issues that would have to be addressed publicly if this application had to go to the 
planning committee.  The following information I provide relates to the planning departments deliberate 
refusal to accept the established planning policy from the 3/6/14 'Eastfield Lodge' decision and 
constantly claim  there is a need for me to provide a marketing exercise to prove if there is a demand for 
agricultural accommodation in the locality or not.  You have left me with no alternative but to provide 
this information to you. 

The Ryedale Plan is clear regarding granting approval for agricultural dwellings.  SP21 c) (i) Proposals 
for new residential development in the open countryside (outside Development Limits) to support land-
based activity, will be required to demonstrate an essential need for the dwelling that cannot be met 
elsewhere.    A condition will be applied.........

RDC planning policy expects accommodation for agricultural workers to be met in nearby villages and 
towns.  This now obligates RDC into accepting all such accommodation in towns and villages as 
available housing stock for agricultural workers identical to those subject to occupancy conditions.

In October 2016 the Planning Officer Mrs Smith informed me a 3rd party application (from Hillside 
Farm) complicated my application.  Yet, within 8 weeks she then told the the owners of Hillside Farm 
that their need for further accommodation for farm workers at Hillside Farm could be readily provided 
from within Pickering which was less than a 5 minutes drive away.  This application at Hillside Farm 
was intended to serve a specific, functional need arising from the farm.  This proves the planning 
department do interpret policy any way they like when it suits them.

Even though the owners of Hillside Farm have provided an appraisal that confirms there is a specific, 
functional need arising from the farm, RDC still expect accommodation provided within nearby villages 
or town some 5 minute away to satisfy the need of the farm.  

The following information is taken from an Appeal Decision Hearing held on 28 January 2014 against 
Craven District Council, by Matthew Birkinshaw BA(Hons) MSc MRTPI an Inspector appointed by the 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government Decision date: 18 February 2014 Appeal 
Ref: APP/C2708/A/13/2208126 Lingcrest, Kettlebeck Road, Eldroth, Austwick, Lancaster, LA2 8AP 

6.  'In establishing whether or not there is a need for agricultural dwellings in the area the 
Council has referred to a planning application for a new house nearby. However, in a 
predominantly rural area, I am not persuaded that a single planning application from 2012 
robustly demonstrates a significant level of demand. At the Hearing both parties also confirmed 
that the dwelling in question was intended to serve a specific, functional need arising from the 
farm where it was based.'  
7. Moreover, information provided by the appellant demonstrates that within the same locality
is another property for sale with an agricultural tie which has failed to sell since it was brought 
onto the market in November 2012.   Whilst I am not aware of all the relevant details, this 
nonetheless demonstrates the presence of alternative agricultural accommodation which is 
available in the area. The evidence before me therefore points to a very limited demand, in the 
context of an existing, underutilised supply in the area.

In relation to note 6 above, this other application stated by Craven Council as defining a demand 
was clearly dismissed by the inspector as having no credence as the application was to serve a 
specific, functional need for the farm.
In relation to note 7 above, this confirms to me that the Planning Inspectorate placed a great deal of
weight behind the presence of alternative accommodation being available in the area for 

9 Page 139



agricultural workers.  Therefore it is only reasonable to expect LPA's to take into account the 
presence of all other available accommodation for agricultural workers in the locality and as such 
these are not limited to just those subject to occupancy conditions.  See below.

One of the reasons why dwellings were subject to agricultural occupancy restrictions, was to provide 
affordable accommodation for agricultural workers within the locality of their work as agricultural 
workers could not be expected to pay local property values, this reason is still valid today but due to the 
fact there is now an established national minimum wage system low income is not limited to just 
agricultural workers.

When a dwelling similar to mine is situated in close proximity to a village, said property come into 
direct competition with 'For Sale' village properties, when there are much cheaper properties available 
'For Sale' in the village free from planning conditions then it is only reasonable to assume these mush 
cheaper properties are more readily affordable and available to agricultural workers than significantly 
higher value properties.  So demand for accommodation by agricultural workers is provided by these 
cheaper properties.

Locality defined by RDC

I now remind you Mr Housden that at our meeting on the 26/10/16 you told me that I could find 
agricultural work within a 30 minute drive from my property and that you yourself can drive a long way 
in 30 minutes, you claimed you could drive to Thirsk in 30 minutes.  For the record Thirsk is 24 miles 
from my property and I have done this journey in less than 30 minutes.  You defined this a RDC stance 
on what is within the locality to my property.  I told you that I had a different application of defining 
locality but I agreed to disagree with the official RDC application.

Taking the previously mentioned statement from council official Mrs Smith into consideration that 
suitable accommodation for Hillside Farm that has a specific, functional need, can be provided within 
the nearby town of Pickering, which is only a 5 minute drive away.  This I understand is the official 
stance of RDC planning department for a farm that has a specific, functional need otherwise Mrs Smith 
would not have made this statement.  You can volunteer a reply if this was a lie by Mrs Smith!

Using the official application provided by Mrs Smith that accommodation for an agricultural worker can
be a 5 minutes drive from his work place I have concluded that my property is within about a 5 minute 
drive from Pickering, Kirkbymoorside, Normanby, Sinnington, Wrelton, Keldholme, Great Edstone, 
Great Barugh, Brawby and Salton.  I know RDC officials and its members will agree with me that, 
agricultural workers are not restricted to only finding accommodation in dwellings that are subject to 
agricultural occupancy conditions, they are entitled to choose their own accommodation and location.

Taking this aforementioned information into consideration, homeowners of dwellings that are subject to 
an occupancy conditions have to compete with lower valued properties in the locality that are not 
subject to any occupancy condition.

There is cheaper accommodation advertised 'For Sale' in the towns, villages and surrounding areas of 
Marton than my property, the majority of these are available to agricultural workers.  I have done a 
quick 20 minute search on Rightmove.co.uk and found the following properties which are advertised at 
less than £200,000 which is £40,000 below the lowest valuation of my property.

In Pickering there are 18 properties from £160,000 to 198,000,  8 properties from £130,000 to £159,000 
and 6 properties from £60,000 to £120,000.
In Kirkbymoorside there are 2 properties from £160,000 to 198,000,  3 properties from £130,000 to 
£159,000 and 1 properties from £100,000 to £120,000.
In Marton there are 2 properties under £200k, 1 at £199,950 and the other at £153,000.

10 Page 140



In Salton 1 property just under £190,000.  In Brawby 1 property at £145,000.
In total I have demonstrated that there are a minimum 42 properties local to Marton within a 5 minute 
drive that are readily available to be bought by agricultural workers which will serve the local farming 
community as the aforementioned RDC planning officer stated to the owners of Hillside Farm and as is 
policy of the Ryedale Plan.
Accommodation for agricultural workers is no different to any other accommodation found in towns or 
villages.  I know RDC officials and its members will agree with me on and that is, agricultural workers 
are not restricted to only find accommodation in dwellings that are subject to agricultural occupancy 
conditions.  They are entitled to choose their own accommodation.
There are many many more properties that are located within a 15 minute drive of my property that are 
below £200,000 value that can readily provide accommodation for agricultural workers.  I can travel to 
Malton, Thornton le Dale, Helmsley, Appleton le Street and many more in 15 minutes.

Mr Housden confirmed on the 26/10/16 'locality' to my property is defined by RDC by the distance I can
drive in 30 minutes.  Based on Mr Housdens claim this means approximately 24 mile drive, this means 
RDC define locality to my property just about encompasses all of Ryedale and extends past to Thirsk, 
Whitby, Scarborough and the Easingwold areas.  Locality has the same meaning as area.  I am obligated 
to accept RDC's definition of 'locality' with this application though it is differs from my own application.

On a point of fact, nearly all accommodation found within these boundaries and beyond that are below 
the £200,000 threshold are readily available to meet the needs of agricultural workers in the locality of 
Marton from either the north, south, east or west direction.  I found well in excess of 150 properties For 
Sale under £200,000 within the locality (Ryedale area) of my property that would accommodate the 
needs of agricultural workers on Rightmove.co.uk all within a 30 minute, 24 mile drive of my property.

On a point of fact, my property does not need to be kept available to meet the needs of agricultural 
workers within the the locality (Ryedale district plus a bit more) just for the sake of complying with the 
condition, I would say that the present total of 150 properties available to the agricultural worker that are
significantly cheaper properties than mine confirms there is presently sufficient housing stock for 
agricultural workers to choose from and all these are free from occupancy conditions.

As for keeping my property available for the needs of agricultural workers within the Marton parish or 
adjoining parishes, the accommodation needs for these workers can be met from the 42 properties 
available for sale within a 5 minute drive which follows the policy of the Ryedale Plan.  My occupancy 
condition does not restrict me to such a small area and Mr Housden has stated on behalf of RDC that 
locality for me is within a 30 minute drive, which is a 24 mile drive.  RDC are obligated to accept that 
this defining of locality to my property has a vice versa effect whereby it increases the number of 
available properties for agricultural workers significantly within the same area defined as being the 
locality for my work, that being all of Ryedale plus a bit.

Demand for agricultural accommodation is primarily dependant on the replacing of retiring farm 
workers at any given time and whether they are replaced with non family members.  Many agricultural 
workers have short term plans and accommodation subject to occupancy conditions are deliberately 
overlooked for obvious reasons.

Because there is such a large number of cheaper accommodation available to agricultural workers in the 
locality of my property this significantly reduces any demand for my property.   

Take into account note 7 from the aforementioned Craven Council appeal relating to 'another property 
for sale with an agricultural tie which has failed to sell since it was brought onto to market in November
2012.   Whilst I am not aware of all the relevant details, this nonetheless demonstrates the presence of 
alternative agricultural accommodation which is available in the area. The evidence before me 
therefore points to a very limited demand, in the context of an existing, underutilised supply in the area.'

11 Page 141



Note 7 confirms that Riverside Cottage located about three quarters of mile from my property has been 
advertised for sale for about the last 12 months and as far as I am aware, no interest has been shown is 
wholly relevant to my application as it defines an obvious lack of  'demand' in the locality of Marton.

I advised you it was in RDC best interest that this issue be passed by 'delegatable decision' but you 
resisted this option.  So you and RDC now find yourselves here,  RDC's official definition of 'locality' as
good as removes completely the validity and need for a marketing exercise as stated in the Ryedale Plan.
I have proven that there are many properties available to agricultural workers in the locality to their 
place of work.  All based entirely on the boundaries as specifically defined by yourself, a senior RDC 
official.  I hope you feel proud of yourself as you are solely responsible for this fact being highlighted.

I know RDC officials and its members will agree with me on and that is, agricultural workers are not 
restricted to only find accommodation in dwellings that are subject to agricultural occupancy conditions.
They are entitled to choose their own accommodation.

I know you and your colleagues will try to concoct a reason to invalidate the above information or just 
ignore it completely, but you can not hide from its relevance in my application. I have totalled 42 
properties available to agricultural workers all within about a 5 minute drive.  There are more than 150 
properties within the locality (applicable area) of my property for agricultural workers to choose from.  
As the planning inspector on the aforementioned Craven District Council appeal on the 28/1/14, 'this 
nonetheless demonstrates the presence of alternative agricultural accommodation which is available in 
the area. The evidence before me therefore points to a very limited demand, in the context of an existing,
underutilised supply in the area.'  This fact alone as good as nullifies any 'Demand' for agricultural 
workers accommodation in the locality of my property.  Take into account RDC determine that nearly all
of the Ryedale area is within the locality of my property and this makes a complete mockery of the need 
to prove there is a 'demand'.  RDC's planning policy definition that 'locality' extends to a place 24 miles 
from Marton, also defines the term 'local' to a place that extends 24 miles from Marton.

Regarding the extensive amount of information I have provided within this application.  I have been 
totally honest at all times, I have tried to provide unambiguous information at all times so there is no 
misunderstanding of the information provided.  RDC appear to dislike the approach I have taken for 
some reason.  I do not think the substantial amount of correspondence presented to RDC complicates the
issues at hand.  Those issues remain the same, I have proven through the established planning policy of 
3/6/14 that there is no need for a 12 month marketing exercise.  I have proven the usefulness of the 
condition has expired (18 years ago and I have been complying with that condition as I had no other 
option).    I have proven with a 2nd reason that with there being over 150 properties available to 
agricultural workers in the locality of Marton this negates any need to prove any 'demand' does or does 
not exist.     I have proven if I did need to provide a marketing exercise then the information provided to 
RDC would be sufficient to prove that the lack of 'demand' and this application should be approved.   I 
could go on but there is no point repeating the facts already provided.  You are either going to accept the 
facts provided or you are going to continue to be arbitrary and continue to keep me unemployed.  

I will be pursuing all the issues I have become aware of through my MP and I reserve the right to make 
public any other details I see fit. 

Even though this letter is 12 pages I only expect RDC provide me with a detailed response to all of the 9
questions found on page 7 of this letter before Friday 3th March 2017.  I am giving you this opportunity 
and hope your response is more than just a straight denial of any wrongdoing as you did previously. 

Regards

Colin Coote 

12 Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

 

 

Item Number: 12 

Application No: 16/01227/OUT 

Parish: Terrington Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Outline Application 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs P Scaling 

Proposal: Erection of dwelling with retention of outbuilding as domestic garage/store 

(site area 0.064ha) 

Location: Land To Rear Of The Forge North Back Lane Terrington  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  14 September 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  19 August 2016 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Building Conservation Officer Concerns - recommends condition  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Paul Jackson AONB Manager No comments to make  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend conditions  

Building Conservation Officer Comments made  

 

Neighbour responses: Sarah Moore, Ms Amanda Moss,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

This application site is located within the village of Terrington and within the designated conservation 

area.  The site is rectangular in shape with a frontage of approximately 20 metres onto North Back 

Lane  and a depth  of approximately 32 metres. 

 

The site is situated between Estate Cottage to the east and Terrington Primary School to the west. The 

site abuts the residential curtilage  of The Forge which fronts onto Main Street further to the south of 

the site. 

 

There are two existing buildings on the site. The existing outbuilding adjacent to the site frontage is 

proposed to be retained as part of the overall design approach. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

This is an outline planning application for the erection of a dwelling with the retention of outbuilding 

for use as garage/store. The application seeks permission for both access and layout at this stage with 

appearance, scale  and landscaping reserved for further submission. The submitted plan shows a 

dwelling with a footprint of 12 metres by 8 metres which is located roughly centrally on the site with 

a back garden depth of approximately 11.7 metres as shown. 

 

During the processing of the application further information has been submitted by the agent showing 

how the profile of the dwelling would sit in the street scene of North Back Lane. Land levels fall in a 

west / east direction along North Back Lane and the profile of the adjacent buildings in relation to the 

proposed dwelling have been shown on an indicative street scene drawing. The eaves and apex 

heights of the dwelling are shown as 5 and 8 metres respectively. 

 

Page 159

Agenda Item 12



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

A Design and Access Statement (DAS) has been submitted with the application in addition to 

information from three local estate agents indicating their opinions on the demand for dwellings in the 

village from potential occupiers who are capable of satisfying the local needs occupancy condition 

that would be applied to the property if planning permission is granted. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

There is no history that is relevant to this site. 

 

POLICY: 
 

NPPF 2012 

NPPG 2014 

 

Ryedale Plan Local Plan Strategy 2013 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Restrictions 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The main considerations in relation to this application are:- 

 

• The principle of the development 

• The impact of the designated conservation area 

• The impact on the AONB 

• The impact on amenity 

• Highway safety matters 

• CIL 

 

Principle of development 

 

The site is located in an ‘Other village’ location. The Local Plan strategy permits infill development 

within a continually built up frontage subject to the dwelling being restricted to the Local Occupancy 

Condition. In this case the plot is considered to be a bona Gide infill plot and the application has been 

accompanied by information from three local estate agents to demonstrate that there is demand for 

such dwellings from individuals who are capable of satisfying the occupancy criteria. In such 

circumstances the principle of the erection of a dwelling on this plot is considered to be acceptable. 

 

Impact on the designated conservation area 
 

The site is located within the designated conservation area and has therefore been appraised by the 

Council’s Building Conservation Officer. Whilst raising no objection in principle initial concerns 

were raised because the application was submitted in outline and detailed parameters were therefore 

requested to ensure that the development preserves or enhances the character of the designated area. 

The retention of the outbuilding on the site frontage is welcomed as this contributes to the character of 

the area. 

 

Following these comments the agent submitted a further site plan and schematic street elevations 

showing the proposed building in the context of the surrounding properties.  

Page 160



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

The DAS show the dwelling to be constructed from stone with pan tile roof and timber windows with 

indicative sketches also shown. The BCO has expressed some core support over the status of this 

document , however it is possible to apply a condition to the planning permission to require the 

subsequent details requiring them to follow the principles and parameters set out in the DAS and 

indicative drawing if Members are minded to grant outline planning permission. 

 

Subject to that proviso the proposal is considered to represent an enhancement to this part of the 

Conservation Area and the retention of the frontage building is also important in preserving this 

aspect of the existing street scene. Policy SP12 and the duty set out in Section 72 of The Planning 

Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas Act is considered to be satisfied. 

 

Impact on the AONB 

 

The village is located within the Howardian Hills AONB although the plot is located within the 

existing village development limits. The AONB manager has no comments to make on the application 

in terms its wider and scale impact and it is therefore considered that Policy SP13 of the adopted plan 

is satisfied. 

 

Impact on amenity 

 

The site is located within the existing village ,next to the primary school and next to existing 

residential properties on it southern and eastern boundaries. Following consultation responses have 

been received from the Head Teacher of the School and the occupier of Forge Cottage to the south. 

The Head teacher has made comments on this application and also in respect of another outline 

application to the west of the school submitted under reference 16/01226/OUT. Both application ware 

supported. In relation to this application the Head Teacher considers that the land (which is currently 

used for storage and car parking) would provide a better environment for children at the school and 

would be more in keeping with other properties in North Back Lane. New residential development 

would also be likely to bring families with young children to the village thereby assisting with pupil 

numbers . The impact of the development on the school premises is therefore considered to be of a 

positive nature. 

 

The occupier of Forge Cottage has raised a number of issues which can be viewed in full on the 

Council’s website. In summary these are : 

 

Concern over the southern boundary; 

Boundary on rising ground is tree lined and showing signs of erosion; 

Possible additional risk of flooding/ subsidence; 

Concerns over loss of privacy; and 

Suggest  a site visit is necessary. 

 

Members will note that this is an outline application with some detailed matters remaining to be 

reserved for further consideration. In this case whilst the application site is located at a higher level 

than the objectors dwelling-house (the land rises from south to north) there is a back to back 

separation distance of over 33 metres between Forge Cottage and the indicative rear wall of the 

proposed dwelling as shown on the submitted plan. This is well in excess of normal back to back 

distances . Officers are confident that in considering this outline application that an acceptable design 

can be achieved under the reserved matters process to ensure that the amenities of adjacent occupiers 

is adequately protected . Matters of landscaping including boundary treatments are also proposed to 

be reserved for later consideration which  would involve further consultation with third parties at that 

stage. There is no indication of any additional flood risk arising from the proposal. In any event a 

dwelling to be erected on this site would have to satisfy the necessary Building Regulations which in 

the normal course of events would cover detailed matters of construction and ground stability. The 

applicant’s agent has confirmed that the applicant controls all of the land identified within the redline 

of the application site. 

 

Page 161



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

In summary the objections raised are noted but are considered by Officers to be capable of being 

adequately controlled at reserved matters stage. Third parties will be consulted and retain the ability to 

comment further at that point. It is suggested however that and informative is added to the outline 

planning permission if approved to draw the attention of future developers to the matters raised so that 

these can be considered early in the detailed design process. 

 

The site itself is considered to provide for sufficient curtilage to meet the needs of the future occupiers 

and is satisfactory in this respect.  Policies SP16 and SP20 are considered to be satisfied. 

 

Highway safety matters. 

 

No objections are raised by NYCC Highways subject to the imposition of conditions to provide for a 

site compound during construction, prevention of mud on the highway and provision of on site 

parking for the dwelling. 

 

CIL 

 

The development is liable for CIL which is chargeable at a rate of £85 / square metre of gross internal 

floor area. The chargeable figure would not be known in this instance until the reserved matters for 

the  detail of the dwelling has been approved. 

 

Other matters 

 

Land Contamination 

 

A Phase 1 report by MD Joyce Associates has been submitted and appraised. The report concludes 

that the risk of contaminants is low. Conditions are however recommended to require some ground 

investigation given the sensitive end use of the site. These would cover investigation, remediation if 

any contamination is found, a verification report and reporting of any unexpected contamination. 

 

The Parish Council has considered this application and fully supports it - noting that 'a mature 

outbuilding with character is retained'. 

 

In conclusion this application is considered to accord with both national and local planning policy and 

subject to the conditions listed below is recommended for approval. 

 

Local Plan Strategy -Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP2 Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP12 Heritage 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP21 Occupancy Restrictions 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Practice Guidance 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 Application for approval of reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority 

not later than. 

  

 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before whichever is the later of the 

following dates:- 

  

 

Page 162



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

 The expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or (in the case of 

approval on different dates) the final approval of the last such matters approved. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004. 

 

2 No development shall take place without the prior written approval of the Local Planning 

Authority of all details of the following matters:- 

  

 (i)     the layout, scale and appearance of every building, including a schedule of external 

materials to be used 

  

 (ii)    the access to the site 

  

 (iii)   the landscaping of the site 

  

 Reason:- To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in respect of the 

reserved matters. 

 

3 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP12, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 No dwelling shall be occupied until the related parking facilities have been constructed in 

accordance with the approved drawing. Once created, these parking areas shall be 

maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all times. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

provide for adequate and satisfactory provision of off-street accommodation for vehicles in 

the interests of safety and the general amenity of the development. 

 

5 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site, and be kept available 

and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan strategy and to 

ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of 

highway safety. 

 

6 Unless approved otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

establishment on a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction of the site, until proposals have been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of: 

  

 (i) on-site parking capable of accommodating all staff and sub-contractors vehicles clear of 

the public highway 

Page 163



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

  

 (ii) on-site materials storage area capable of accommodating all materials required for the 

operation of the site. 

  

 The approved areas shall be kept available for their intended use at all times that 

construction works are in operation.  No vehicles associated with on-site construction works 

shall be parked on the public highway or outside the application site. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

provide for appropriate on-site vehicle parking and the storage facilities, in the interests of 

highway safety and the general amenity of the area. 

  

7 The details submitted for approval of reserved matters shall follow the principles and 

parameters set out in the Design and Access statement and Site Plan and Schematic Street 

Elevations shown on Drawing AR10 - Sheet No. 1 dated 20 January 2017, which also 

provides for the retention of the existing building on site which abuts the boundary with 

North Back Lane. 

 

8 Development shall not begin until an investigation and risk assessment of land 

contamination has been completed by competent persons and a report of the findings 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This shall include an 

appropriate survey of the nature and extent of any contamination affecting the site, and an 

assessment of the potential risks to human health, controlled waters, property and ecological 

systems.   

  

 Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 

unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other receptors. 

  

9 Where land affected by contamination is found which poses  risks identified as 

unacceptable, no development or remediation shall take place until a detailed remediation 

scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the local planning authority.  The scheme must include proposed 

remediation objectives and remediation criteria, an appraisal of remedial options and 

proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, and a description and 

programme of the works to be undertaken including the verification plan. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 

unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other receptors. 

  

10 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority, none of the dwellings 

shall be occupied (or the site shall not be brought into use) until the approved scheme of 

remediation has been completed, and a verification report demonstrating the effectiveness of 

the remediation carried out has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority. The verification report shall include a description of the works 

undertaken and a photographic record where appropriate, the results of any additional 

monitoring or sampling, evidence that any imported soil is from a suitable source, and 

copies of relevant waste documentation for any contaminated material removed from the 

site. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 

unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other receptors. 

Page 164



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017 

  

  

 

11 In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 

development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to the local 

planning authority.  An appropriate investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken, 

and where remediation is necessary, a remediation scheme must be prepared by competent 

persons and submitted to the local planning authority for approval.  Following completion of 

measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report that 

demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the local planning authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and 

neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and 

ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 

unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other receptors. 

  

12 The dwelling hereby approved shall only be occupied by a person(s) together with his/her 

spouse and dependents, or a widow/widower of such a person, who: 

  

•     Have permanently resided in the parish, or an adjoining parish (including those outside 

the District), for at least three years and are now in need of new accommodation, which 

cannot be met from the existing housing stock; or 

•    Do not live in the parish but have a long standing connection to the local community, 

including a previous period of residence of over three years but have moved away in the 

past three years, or service men and women returning to the parish after leaving military 

service; or 

•    Are taking up full-time permanent employment in an already established business which 

has been located within the parish, or adjoining parish, for at least the previous three 

years; or 

•    Have an essential need arising from age or infirmity to move to be near relatives who have 

been permanently resident within the District for at least the previous three years 

  

 Reason:- To satisfy the requirements of Policies SP2 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

 

13 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 13 

Application No: 16/01824/FUL 
Parish: Whitwell-on-the-Hill Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Miss Serena Brotherton And Mrs Sarah Brotherton 
Proposal: Erection of 2no. semi-detached two bedroom dwellings with formation of 

associated parking area 

Location: Land Off Main Street Whitwell On The Hill Malton  
 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  5 January 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 February 2017 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Foss Internal Drainage Board Recommend conditions  

Parish Council Observations made  

Archaeology Section Recommend condition  
Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Paul Jackson AONB Manager Observations made  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  
Public Rights Of Way Recommend informative  

 
Neighbour responses: None 
 

 

 

SITE:  

 
The site is located on the southern side of Main Street, on the western end of the village of Whitwell 

on the Hill. The site measures 451 square metres (0.451 hectares) in area. Main Street is to the 

immediate north, with the back lane running to the south. The site is located within the Howardian 
Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  

 
PROPOSAL: 

 
Erection of 2no. semi-detached two bedroom dwellings with formation of associated parking area. 
 

Members should note that Officer's raised concerns regarding the initial scheme to erect 2no. semi-

detached three bedroom dwellings. Furthermore, the Parish Council also raised concerns to the 
scheme. A letter was sent to the agent, stating the following: 

 

Whilst there is no objection in principle to residential development on this site, it is considered that 
due to the limited size of the site in terms of its width and it tapering away south eastwards, the two 

dwellings would appear to be visually cramped and an over-development of the site. The site is 

prominent, exposed and the rises slightly from north to south. It is also a visual end stop to the built 
form on the southern side of the village. The eastern most dwelling proposed is also located in very 

close proximity to the west facing gable of the property Two Gables which has a large window on this 

elevation. It is also unclear from the plans as the where the exact boundary is on the eastern side of 
the site and whether there would be any boundary treatment here.  

 
The proposed dwellings incorporate a further bedroom and en-suite in the roof.  This has resulted in 

the dwellings being higher compared to neighbouring properties and properties opposite. They would 

appear dominant in relation to these existing properties and would not reinforce local distinctiveness 
of the settlement in terms of the heights. It is also unclear as to how the site levels would work on the 

ground. 

Page 178

Agenda Item 13



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Following these comments, a revised scheme was submitted, making the following amendments: 
 

• Each of the dwellings are now 2 bedrooms and not 3 resulting in dwelling that are smaller in 
scale. 

• The dwellings will be positioned 0.792 metres below the exiting site level.  

• From the proposed finished site level, the dwellings will measure 7.594  metres to the ridge and 

4.755  metres to the eaves. The dwellings previously measured 8.113 metres to the ridge and 

4.854 metres to the eaves from the proposed finished site level to allow for a second floor 
(room in the roof space). 

• The dwellings are now positioned 3.4 metres to the west of the neighbouring property of Two 
Gables. Initially, they were 1.8 metres to the west of Two Gables. 

• The applicant has provided clarity that the eastern facing ground and first  floor windows on the 
property of Two Gables serve a pantry, kitchen, back hall, bathroom and landing/stairs. It 

should be noted that the kitchen also has a front facing window.  

• The front (north) elevation fenestration details have been amended.  

• Further information regarding the need for 2 small market dwellings in this location. 

 
HISTORY: 
 

There is no relevant planning history in connection with the site.  
 

POLICY : 
 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 
Policy SP1 General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy  

Policy SP2 Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP4 Type and Mix of New Housing 
Policy SP12 Heritage 

Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Policy SP16 Design 
Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP18 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy 

Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 Occupancy Restrictions 

Policy SP22 Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy  
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  
 

Chapter 6. Delivering a wide choice of high quality homes  

Chapter 7. Requiring good design 
Chapter 11. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  

Chapter 12. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  

 
National Planning Practice Guidance (2014) 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations to be taken into account when considering the proposal are:  

 
1. The Principle of Development  

2. Local Needs Occupancy 

3. Scale, Form and Detailed Design 
4. Impact upon the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 

Page 179



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

5. Highway Safety 
6. Impact upon Neighbouring Amenity 

7. Archaeology  

8. Drainage 
9. Land contamination 

10. Community Infrastructure Levy  

11. Other Matters 
12. Conclusion  

 
1.The Principle of Development  

 

The site is located within the Development Limits of Whitwell-on-the Hill. Whitwell-on-the Hill is 
classified as an 'other village' within the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. Policy SP2 (Delivery and 

Distribution of Housing) is supportive of infill development (small open sites in an otherwise 

continually built  up frontage) restricted to Local Needs Occupancy within 'other villages'. It  is 
considered that residential development would continue the built  form on the southern side of the 

village. Therefore, the principle of residential development is acceptable in this location, subject to the 

Local Needs Occupancy restriction.   
 

2. Local Needs Occupancy 

 
The applicants currently provide a large number of rented properties within the village. They have 

stated that due to the increased demand for family homes in this location, they would like to build a 

further two homes for rental. A letter has also been received from the Estate Agents Routhwaite and 
Woodhead that outlines there is a significant shortfall of affordable 2/3 bedroom cottages to rent in 

Whitwell on the Hill and the surrounding area. They are currently trying to find rental properties for 2 

young local people and 3 couples who are all gainfully employed in the area. The adjoining Parishes 
to Whitwell on the Hill are Welburn, Bulmer, Foston, Barton Le Willows, Crambe and Westow. It is 

considered that it has been demonstrated that there is a local need for 2 units in this location and 
therefore the Local Needs Occupancy restriction can be satisfied. 

 

3. Scale, Form and Detailed Design 
 

The semi-detached properties will have a total width of 10.6 metres along the frontage and run ridge-

parallel to the road. They will have a depth of 11 metres and to the rear, have single storey off-shoots 
that form a kitchen. The applicants have recently built  two properties further to the east of the village 

of similar scale, form and detailed design.  

 
It is considered that the proposed development would follow the grain of settlement of Whitwell on 

the Hill in terms of the scale, sit ing, orientation, boundaries and spaces between the proposed 

dwellings. The dwellings also have adequate private amenity space commensurate to the size of the 
dwellings. Boundary treatments will be agreed at condition stage.  

 

The architectural style and materials would mimic the local vernacular however it  is recommended 
that conditions are attached requiring the submission of a sample panel of the materials to be used to 

ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to ensure the dwellings would comply with of Policy 
SP16 (Design) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. Solar panels are also proposed on the 

southern roof slope. A low level retaining wall with a step down from the road level will be erected 

along the frontage.  
 

4. Impact upon the Howardian Hills Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) 

 
The AONB Manager stated the following with regard to the initial scheme.  

 

I have the following observations to make on this proposal: 
 

Page 180



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

1) The applicants have demonstrated their ability to deliver well-designed and appropriately-sized 
housing units in Whitwell for many years and this proposal follows in that tradition. 

 

2) The reduction in site ground level to match the adjacent property to the east will be particularly 
important in ensuring that the new dwellings don't overpower the vernacular cottages next door. 

 

Based upon these comments, it  was decided not to re-consult on the revised scheme. It  is therefore 
considered that the proposal will not detract from the natural beauty and special qualities of the 

AONB, complying with Policy SP13 (Landscapes) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  
 

5. Highway Safety 

 
The Local Highway Authority stated the following with regard to the initial scheme.  

 

Whilst no highway authority objections are raised in principle to the development, I have concerns 
that further vehicular use of the Back Lane, in order to access the new properties, will cause 

deterioration of the access construction at its junction with Main Street, thereby leading to debris 

being brought out onto the public highway. Please note that similar access arrangements are in place 
for the development approved underplanning ref. 14/00983/FUL. 

 

Clarification is therefore sought that the applicants (who are stated as being the owners of many 
properties in the village), can bring the first six metres of Back Lane up to a bound macadam 

standard, and include this as part of the development proposals. Some of the car parking spaces 

proposed will require vehicles to reverse out onto grass beside the surface of Back Lane on the 
opposite side, and it is recommended that additional areas are stoned-up to withstand this traffic. 

 

The agent subsequently submitted revised plans, addressing the comments raised above. 
 

The Local Highway Authority has stated the following with regard to the revised scheme: 
 

In response to the comments forwarded from the Parish Council, the application site frontage is 

already subject to a visibility sight line condition attached to application refs. 14/00983/FUL & 
15/00477/73A. The revised plan shows the first 6 metres of Back Lane to be made up and surfaced in 

macadam, and the existing Main Street carriageway is, in fact, the same width all along its length. 

 
Consequently the Local Highway Authority recommends that the following Conditions are attached to 

any permission granted: 

 
These conditions relate to the construction requirements for the private verge crossing, the parking for 

dwellings to be retained at all t imes, precautions to prevent mud on the highway and onsite parking, 

on-site storage and construction traffic during development. 
 

The Public Rights of Way team at NYCC have advised that an informative is attached to the Decision 

Notice if planning permission is granted regarding the adjacent public right of way.  
 

6. Impact upon Neighbouring Amenity 
 

The nearest residential property to the site is Two Gables to the immediate east of the site. There are 

also residential properties over the road to the north of the site, approximately 18 metres away. These 
properties are known as Holly Tree House and Caroldene. 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 181



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

It is considered that due to the orientation of the properties, the positioning of the proposed openings 
and the what the windows on the western elevation of Two Gables serve, there will not be a material 

adverse impact upon neighbouring occupiers. This is in terms of being overbearing in presence, 

causing loss of light or loss of privacy, complying with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 
Strategy. No comments have been received from the occupiers of these properties. Boundary 

treatments will be agreed at condition stage.  

 
7. Archaeology  

 
The Heritage Officer at North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) has stated the following with 

regard to the proposal: 

 
There is a record for the village of Whitwell on the Hill in Domesday book from the 11th century and 

also in the 14th century lay subsidy roll. The present village appears to reflect the original medieval 

layout of two opposing rows with evidence for the medieval field system, visible as broad earthwork 
ridge and furrow, holloways and boundaries behind the village rows and beyond. The proposed 

development site lies on the street frontage in line with what would have been the original village 

layout, and appears to have been undeveloped since the 1st edition OS Map. Therefore there is the 
potential for undisturbed remains of medieval date to exist within the site. 

 

Therefore, I would advise that a scheme of archaeological mitigation recording is undertaken in 
response to the ground-disturbing works associated with this development proposal. This should 

comprise an archaeological watching brief to be carried out during excavations for new foundations 

and new drainage or services, to be followed by appropriate analyses, reporting and archive 
preparation. This is in order to ensure that a detailed record is made of any deposits/remains that will 

be disturbed. This advice is in accordance with the historic environment policies within Section 12 of 

the National Planning Policy Framework, CLG, 2012 (paragraph 141) 
 

In order to secure the implementation of such a scheme of archaeological mitigation recording, I 
would advise that the following condition be appended to any planning permission granted: 

 

Condition: 
 

A) No demolition/development shall take place/commence until a Written Scheme of Investigation 

has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. The scheme shall 
include an assessment of significance and research questions; and: 

 

1. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 
2. Community involvement and/or outreach proposals 

3. The programme for post investigation assessment 

4. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 
5. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the site 

investigation 

6. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site investigation  
7. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out within 

the Written Scheme of Investigation. 
 

B) No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the Written Scheme of 

Investigation approved under condition (A). 
 

C) The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation 

assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of 
Investigation approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and 

dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured. 

 
 

Page 182



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Reason: This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 12 of the NPPF as the site is of 
archaeological interest. 

 

The above condition will be attached to the Decision Notice if planning permission is granted.  
 

8. Drainage 

 
The Foss (2008) Internal Drainage Board have stated the following with regard to the proposal: 

 
The Board does have assets adjacent to the site in the form of Bulmer Beck/Spittle Beck and Outgang 

Drain; these watercourses are known to be subject to high flows during storm events.  

 
The Board wishes to state that where possible the risk of flooding should be reduced and that, as far 

as is practicable, surface water arising from a developed site should be managed in a sustainable 

manner to mimic the surface water flows arising from the site prior to the proposed development. This 
should be considered whether the surface water arrangements from the site are to connect to a public 

or private asset (watercourse or sewer) before out-falling into a watercourse or, to outfall directly 

into a watercourse in the Board’s area.  
 

The site is in an area where drainage problems could exist and development should not be allowed 

until the Authority is satisfied that surface water drainage has been satisfactorily provided for. Any 
approved development should not adversely affect the surface water drainage of the area and amenity 

of adjacent properties.  

 
The Board notes that this is an application for the erection of 2 semi-detached, three-bedroom, 

dwellings along with formation of associated parking areas. This will enlarge the impermeable area 

on site and has the potential to increase the rate of surface water run-off from the site if this is not 
effectively constrained.  

 
The Board notes that the application form indicates that the surface water from the development is to 

be disposed of via a soakaway. The Board welcomes this approach to surface water disposal however 

the application does not indicate if this is an existing facility or it is to be newly constructed for the 
purpose.  

 

If the soakaway already exists the Board would suggest that the Local Authority seek confirmation of 
its location and that the system is working effectively, and also have evidence that it is capable of 

handling the additional volume of water that will be generated by the site. It is not sufficient for the 

applicant to rely on anecdotal evidence of its past performance. 
 

If the soakaway is to be newly constructed the Board recommends that the applicant be asked to carry 

out soakaway testing, in accordance with BRE Digest 365, in order to ascertain that the soil structure 
is suitable for a soakaway system. Should the testing prove to be successful the applicant should then 

submit a design for the soakaway, for approval by the Planning Authority, which would fully 

accommodate a 1:30 year storm event with no overland run-off for a 1:100 year event plus a 20% 
allowance for climate change.  

 
If the testing of either an existing or a newly created soakaway proves unsatisfactory then the 

applicant will need to reconsider their surface water drainage strategy.  

The Board has no objection to the principal of this development but suggests that any approval 
granted to the proposed development should include the following condition:  

 

EFFECTIVE SOAKAWAYS  

 

The suitability of new soakaways, as a means of surface water disposal, should be ascertained in 

accordance with BRE Digest 365 to the satisfaction of the Approving Authority, who is generally the 
Local Authority.  

Page 183



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

If the soakaway is proved to be unsuitable then in agreement with the Environment Agency and/or the 
Drainage Board, as appropriate, peak run-off must be attenuated to 70% of the existing rate (based 

on 140 l/s/ha of connected impermeable area).  

 
If the location is considered to be detrimental to adjacent properties the Applicant should be 

requested to re-submit amended proposals showing how the Site is to be drained.  

 
The suitability of any existing soakaway to accept any additional flow that could be discharged to it 

as a result of the proposals should be ascertained. If the suitability is not proven the Applicant should 
be requested to re-submit amended proposals showing how the Site is to be drained. 

 

Reason: To ensure that the installation of soakaways provide an adequate method of surface water 
disposal and reduce the risk of flooding. 

 

The above condition will be attached to the Decision Notice if planning permission is granted.  
 

9. Land contamination 

 
The plot was formally used as a domestic garden space for Two Gables. The submitted Contamination 

Assessment Screening Assessment Form does not identify any evidence of contamination on the site. 

 
10. Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

 

The proposal is the subject of the Community Infrastructure Levy. The applicant has assumed liability 
and the charge will calculated at £85 per square metre (gross internal floor area).  

 

11. Other Matters 
 

Whitwell on the Hill with Crambe Parish Council stated the following with regard to the initial 
scheme.  

 

We have considered the application and have the following observations regarding the access, scale 
of proposed buildings and enhancement. 

 

1. It appears from the plans and after a site visit for perspective, that the site seems too small for 2 
properties and that we suggest a bungalow which would be in keeping with the site line down the 

village where there are single story houses in-between semi detached properties. 

 
2. There are several apparent drawbacks with the current position of the properties such that the road 

narrows at the proposed site, and this is likely to hinder access to the road for existing  tenants 

whereby their drives enter onto Main Street and will be a foreseeable safety risk. Please can you 
inform us if Highways have commented on the proposed plans and if so what their opinion is of the 

road safety on Main Street at the proposed site. 

 
3. Current tenants' cars and delivery vehicles and community service vehicles easily block safe access 

along Main Street particularly at the proposed site and it is likely that new tenants at the proposed 
site will park out side their front door which appears habitual for existing tenants, despite rear car 

parking. 

 
4. There is substantial evidence of the visiting  cricketer players parking their cars during the summer 

months causing such a safety hazard where the Main Street narrows at the proposed site. 

 
5. A suggestion could be that proposed buildings are set further back off the main road and the road 

widened in front of the properties to allow for a delivery vehicle or community service vehicle for 

example to reduce the foresee ability of risk of an accident due to poor visibility. 
 

Page 184



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

6. In addition this would enable good visibility for the existing tenants in properties near to the 

proposed site to join Main Street in a safe manner. 
 

7. The existing track to the east of the proposed buildings is in poor condition and we have observed 

numerous potholes- a new tarmac surface would be beneficial. 
 

8. From the plans it appears that the proposed buildings are below road level- please can this be 

clarified. 
 

9. We suggest that the ridge level of the proposed buildings should not be higher than the adjacent 
property. 

 

10. Further that the eaves level of the proposed buildings should not be higher than the adjacent 
property. 

 

11. It is not apparent  from the plans whether the proposed buildings are in scale with the adjacent 
property and of those on the opposite side of the road- please can this be clarified. 

 

12. Long term tenants and residents  enjoy excellent views from their properties and it is important 
that the character of the village remains intact within the Area of Outstanding Beauty and new 

buildings are sensitively considered. 

 
13. Whitwell on the Hill has signs on the A64 only for direction and the Parish Council request as an 

enhancement for the village should the planning be successful that 2 stone plinths are erected at each 

end of the village and it is hope that funding will be available for 2 signs from AONB. 
 

Whitwell on the Hill with Crambe Parish Council  then stated the following with regard to the re-

consultation of the revised plans: 
 

Our comments were carefully considered at length and we are disappointed that the revisions are not 
reflective of this. 

 

For example, the ridge level could be the same as the adjacent existing house and perhaps 
incorporating a dormer into the roof spaces that would fit with the existing street line. 

 

There appears no acknowledgment of the potential hazards of the cars parking on the front of the 
properties and this could have been accommodated by moving the houses back . We remain of the 

opinion that this is a serious safety concern with likely impeded access and egress of the residents 

currently opposite the proposed houses.  
 

We stand by our former comments regarding the tarmacking of the road and with only 6 meters being 

restored this will likely discourage new residents from using the formal car parking at the rear of the 
property.  

 

We also have not received information regarding your planning colleagues suggestion of planning 
gain and the new sign posts at each end of the village for example. 

 
Response to the Parish Council comments 

 

Some of the points raised by the Parish Council in their  initial response were requiring clarity on 
certain matters.  

 

Their recent comments on the revised proposal conclude that the ridge level could be the same as the 
adjacent existing house. The proposed ridge height of the new dwellings is 7.59  metres (from the 

finished site level), with the ridge height of the adjacent property of Two Gables being 6.8 metres 

from the finished floor level. The difference therefore being 0.79 metres. A variety of the properties 
within the village are not the same height and vary in ridge and eave level.  

Page 185



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

The predominant character of the village is that of dwellings which run ridge parallel to the road, 
which these dwellings will also do. With regard to incorporating dormer windows, the agent has 

outlined that if dormers were to be included to the rear, there would not be enough roof space to then 

incorporate the solar panels. The solar panels are being installed to generate low carbon sources of 
energy.  

 

In light of the comments made by the Parish Council in terms of highway safety, the Local Highway 
Authority are of the view that the proposal is acceptable in terms of highway safety, subject to 

conditions relating to the construction requirements for the private verge crossing, the parking for 
dwellings to be retained at all t imes, precautions to prevent mud on the highway and onsite parking, 

on-site storage and construction traffic during development. 

 
New signs at the each end of the village are not considered to be relevant to this planning application 

and cannot therefore be reasonably required by way of a planning condition.  

 
12. Conclusion  

 

In light of the above considerations, the erection of 2no. semi-detached two bedroom dwellings with 
formation of associated parking area is considered to satisfy the relevant policy criteria outlined with 

Policies SP1, SP2, SP4, SP12, SP13, SP16, SP17, SP18, SP19, SP20, SP21 & SP22 of the Ryedale 

Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore 
recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 
  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004 

 

2 Notwithstanding the submitted details, prior to the commencement of the development 
hereby permitted,  or such longer period as may be agreed in writing with the Local 

Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to be used on the exterior of the 

building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 
Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

3 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 
construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre 

square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. 

The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed. 
  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 
Policies SP16 and SP20  of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

4 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 
excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of 

material on the site until the access(es) to the site have been set out and constructed in 

accordance with the published Specification of the Highway Authority and the following 
requirements 

  

 
 

Page 186



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

 c. The existing Back Lane access onto Main Street shall be improved by upgrading of layout 
as shown on Drawing Number PD211-01-C and upgrading of construction specification as 

shown on Standard Detail number DC/E9A for the first  six metres, as measured from the 

carriageway edge of Main Street. 
  

 g. Provision to prevent surface water from Back Lane (beyond the first  six metres to be 

upgraded) discharging onto the existing or proposed highway shall be constructed in 
accordance with details that shall be submitted and agreed with the local planning authority 

in consultation with the local highway authority in advance of the commencement of the 
 development and maintained thereafter to prevent such discharges. 

  

 All works shall accord with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
ensure a satisfactory means of access to the site from the public highway in the interests of 

vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience 

 
5 No dwelling shall be occupied until the related parking facilit ies have been constructed in 

accordance with the approved drawing number PD211-01-C. Once created these parking 

areas shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at 
all t imes. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
provide for adequate and satisfactory provision of off-street accommodation for vehicles in 

the interest of safety and the general amenity of the development. 

 
6 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit  of mud, grit  and dirt  on 
public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

 Authority. These facilit ies shall include the provision of wheel washing facilit ies where 
considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority. These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site and be kept available 
and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal. 

  
 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of 

highway safety. 
 

7 Unless approved otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority there shall be no 

establishment of a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of 
material in connection with the construction on the site until proposals have been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of: 
  

 a. on-site parking capable of accommodating all staff and sub-contractors vehicles clear of 

the public highway 
 b. on-site materials storage area capable of accommodating all materials required for the 

operation of the site. 

 c. The approved areas shall be kept available for their intended use at all t imes that 
construction works are in operation. 

  

 
 

Page 187



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 
provide for appropriate on-site vehicle parking and storage facilit ies, in the interests of 

highway safety and the general amenity of the area. 

 
8 Condition (A) No demolition/development shall take place/commence until a Written 

Scheme of Investigation has been submitted to and approved by the local planning authority 

in writing. The scheme shall include an assessment of significance and research questions; 
and: 

  
 1. The programme and methodology of site investigation and recording 

 2. Community involvement and/or outreach proposals 

 3. The programme for post investigation assessment 
 4. Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and recording 

 5. Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the analysis and records of the 

site investigation 
 6. Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and records of the site 

investigation 

 7. Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to undertake the works set out 
within the Written Scheme of Investigation. 

  

 Reason: This condition is imposed in accordance with SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 
Plan Strategy and Section 12 of the NPPF as the site is of archaeological interest. 

 

9 No demolition/development shall take place other than in accordance with the Written 
Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A). 

  

 Reason: This condition is imposed in accordance with SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 
Plan Strategy and Section 12 of the NPPF  as the site is of archaeological interest. 

 
10 The development shall not be occupied until the site investigation and post investigation 

assessment has been completed in accordance with the programme set out in the Written 

Scheme of Investigation approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, 
publication and dissemination of results and archive deposition has been secured. 

  

 Reason: This condition is imposed in accordance with SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 
Plan Strategy and Section 12 of the NPPF as the site is of archaeological interest. 

 

11 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as 
may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details of the proposed 

boundary treatments shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  
  

 Reason: To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 

neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, complying with 
Policies SP13, SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 
12 The suitability of new soakaways, as a means of surface water disposal, should be 

ascertained in accordance with BRE Digest 365 to the satisfaction of the Approving 

Authority, who is generally the Local Authority.  
  

 If the soakaway is proved to be unsuitable then in agreement with the Environment Agency 

and/or the Drainage Board, as appropriate, peak run-off must be attenuated to 70% of the 
existing rate (based on 140 l/s/ha of connected impermeable area).  

  

 If the location is considered to be detrimental to adjacent properties the Applicant should be 
requested to re-submit amended proposals showing how the Site is to be drained.  

Page 188



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

  

 The suitability of any existing soakaway to accept any additional flow that could be 
discharged to it  as a result  of the proposals should be ascertained. If the suitability is not 

proven the Applicant should be requested to re-submit amended proposals showing how the 

Site is to be drained. 
  

 Reason: To ensure that the installation of soakaways provide an adequate method of surface 

water disposal and reduce the risk of flooding, complying with Policy SP17 of the Ryedale 
Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

  
13 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, details of levels of the 

proposed development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the applicant.  Such 

details shall include existing levels across the site, together with finished floor levels, access 
and drainage runs.  

   

 Reason:- In the interests of the character of the area, the amenities of neighbouring 
occupiers and to satisfy Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

14 The dwelling hereby approved shall only be occupied by a person(s) together with his/her 
spouse and dependents, or a widow/widower of such a person, who: 

  

• Have permanently resided in the parish, or an adjoining parish (including those outside 
the District), for at least three years and are now in need of new accommodation, which 

cannot be met from the existing housing stock; or 

• Do not live in the parish but have a long standing connection to the local community, 

including a previous period of residence of over three years but have moved away in 
the past three years, or service men and women returning to the parish after leaving 

military service; or 

• Are taking up full-time permanent employment in an already established business 
which has been located within the parish, or adjoining parish, for at least the previous 

three years; or 

• Have an essential need arising from age or infirmity to move to be near relatives who 

have been permanently resident within the District for at least the previous three years 

  
 Reason: To satisfy the requirements of Policies SP2 and SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

 
15 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 
  

 REVISED PLAN - OS SITE LOCATION PLAN & SITE BLOCK PLANS - Drawing 

Number PD211-01-C dated 07/02/2017. 
 REVISED PLAN - AS PROPOSED ELEVATIONS - Drawing Number PD211-03-D dated 

07/02/2017. 

 REVISED PLAN - AS PROPOSED FLOOR PLANS AND TYPICAL SECTION - 
Drawing Number PD211-02-B dated 07/02/2017. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 
 

INFORMATIVES: 

 
1 You are advised that a separate licence will be required from the Highway Authority in 

order to allow any works in the adopted highway to be carried out.  The 'Specification for 

Housing and Industrial Estate Roads and Private Street Works' published by North 
Yorkshire County Council, the Highway Authority, is available at the County Council's 

offices.  The local office of the Highway Authority will also be pleased to provide the 
detailed constructional specification referred to in this condition. 

Page 189



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

2 The applicant should be aware that the application site frontage is subject to a visibility 
sight-line condition applied under previous planning approvals. References: 14/00893/FUL 

(Condition 06) & 15/00477/73A (Condition 04). 

 
 

Background Papers: 
  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 
National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 14 

Application No: 16/01854/LBC 
Parish: Staxton/Willerby Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Listed Building Consent 

Applicant: Mr Darrel Crick 
Proposal: Installation of a log burning stove with external flue to east elevation roof 

slope 

Location: Sows Ear Cottage 2 Staxton Farm Yard Main Street Staxton Scarborough 
North Yorkshire YO12 4TA 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  14 February 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  2 February 2017 
Case Officer:  Joshua Murphy Ext: 329 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Building Conservation Officer Object  

 
Neighbour responses: None 

 
 

 

SITE:  
 

Sows Ear Cottage is part of a Grade II Listed curtilage, which includes the area where the 
development is sited. It is also within the Staxton Development Limit.  

 

The listed building description:  
 

Foldyard wall and farmbuilding. Late C18. Cha lkstone with irregular sandstone quoins;  

pantile roof to build ing and sandston e coping to wall. Corner site. 1- sto rey building with 
attached wall approximately 3 metres h igh. No open ing on street. Ra ised eaves band and 

hipped roo f to building. S loped coping  to wall. Included  fo r g roup value. Building on  ya rd 
side o f wall not of specia l in terest.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

The application is for the installation of a log burning stove with external flue to east elevation roof 

slope, which has been carried out without Listed Building Consent.  
 

The flue is 1.9m in height and is 140mm above the roof line of the building. It is constructed of 

stainless steel and has an unpainted (shiny) finish.  
 

There has also been a log burner installed which is connected to the flue which is installed in the roof 

of the dwelling. 

 

HISTORY: 
 
There is no relevant history.  

Page 201

Agenda Item 14



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

POLICY:  
 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 
Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act 1990 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  

 
Chapter 7. Requiring good design 

Chapter 12. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  

 
APPRAISAL: 

 

The main consideration taken into account is:  
 

i) The impact upon the Listed Building  

 
The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires ,the Local Planning 

Authority to give special regard to the desirability of preserving the Listed Building or its setting or 

any features that it possesses.  
 

The main considerations to be taken into account are the impact of the alterations upon the 

significance of the Grade II listed building in terms of its historical and architectural fabric.  
 

In considering and negotiating development proposals, the Council will seek to protect other features 
of local historic value and interest throughout Ryedale having regard to the scale of any harm or loss 

and the significance of the heritage asset. Listed Building Consent was sought for the installation of a 

log burning stove with external flue to east elevation.  
 

The work has already been completed prior to a Listed Building Consent application being submitted.  

These alterations are therefore regarded as unauthorised works to the listed building.  
 

The Councils Building Conservation Officer has objected to the scheme and has made the following 

comments:  
 

Sows Ear Cottage is a Grade II Listed Building. It is located on a corner with the main street and a 

narrow side lane. The building forms the boundary along the side lane and it is highly visible. 
 

This is a clearly modern intervention in a former agricultural building. The long and low nature of 

the building is complimented by its location alongside a narrow street which funnels the view. The 
flue is a highly visible strong modern vertical element that jars with the traditional long and low form 

of the building. 
 

The presence of tv aerials giving vertical emphasis compounds the distracting visible presence of the 

flue. 
 

It is also considered that the flue can be seen from most angles when viewed from the public realm. 

Although positioned adjacent to Slope Lane (which is a quiet access road), the development can be 
seen from various view points looking south from Main Street. The height of the flue also means that 

it  is visible above the roof line of the building and as such can be seen from within the cluster of 

buildings.  
 

Page 202



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Policy SP12(Heritage) states that, designated historic assets and their settings, including Listed 
Buildings will be conserved and where appropriate, enhanced. Development proposals which would 

result  in substantial harm to or total loss of the significance of a designated heritage asset will be 

resisted unless wholly exceptional circumstances can be demonstrated.  
 

The Local Planning Authority has acted positively and proactively in determining this application by 

identifying matters of concern with the proposal and determining the application within a timely 
manner, clearly setting out the reasons for refusal.  

 
If the application is refused as recommended, then measures to remove the flue are also required to 

secure the removal of the flue and the restoration of the roof to its former condition.  In this instance, 

it  is considered that appropriate enforcement action should be taken. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal   
 
1 The installation of a log burning stove with its associated stainless steel external flue to east 

elevation roof slope by virtue of its harm to the significance of the Grade II Listed Building 

is considered to be an inappropriate and unsympathetic alteration to the special interest of 
the listed building. The development is therefore contrary to the requirements of Policies 

SP12 and SP16 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and contrary to the advice 

contained in Section 12 (Conserving and enhancing the Historic Environment) of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

2 Enforcement Action be taken to secure the removal of the external flue and restoration of 
the roof. 

 

 
Background Papers: 
  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 203



Page 204



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 15 

Application No: 16/02013/HOUSE 
Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting 

Appn. Type: Householder Application 

Applicant: Mr Michael Aherne 
Proposal: Erection of replacement front porch and removal of front entrance steps 

Location: Pavilion House  The Terrace Oswaldkirk Helmsley YO62 5XZ 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  28 February 2017  
Overall Expiry Date:  22 February 2017 

Case Officer:  Joshua Murphy Ext: 329 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Paul Jackson AONB Manager No comments to make  
Paul Jackson AONB Manager Concerns raised  

Parish Council Support  

Building Conservation Officer No objection  

 
Neighbour responses: Ms Jacqueline Anne Young, P Thompson, Mr Steve 

Thompson,  
 

 

 

SITE:  
 
Pavilion House is a two storey dwellinghouse, mainly constructed of sandstone with a clay pantile 

roof. The dwelling is also sited within the Oswaldkirk Conservation Area and the Howardian Hills 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty.  
 

PROPOSAL: 
 
The application is for the erection of a replacement front porch and the removal of front entrance 

steps.  
 

The initial showed a replacement front porch which was to be measured at 1.4m in length by 1.9m in 

width and a height of 2.1m to the eaves and 2.7m to the ridge. The proposed roof pitch of the porch  is 
35 degrees.  

 

The applicant then submitted revised plans, due to comments raised during the consultation period. 
This involved the reduction of the porch and changes to its design. The proposal now measures at 

1.5m in width, although there is no changes in the length and height. 

 
The existing access to the porch via the front steps has also been proposed to be removed for safer 

access. New steps have been constructed on the eastern corner of the dwelling.  

 

HISTORY: 
 

There is no relevant history for this site.  
 

POLICY:  
 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 
Policy SP12 Heritage 

Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Page 205

Agenda Item 15



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Policy SP16 Design 
Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  

Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservations Areas) Act 1990 

 

Section 66 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  
 

Chapter 7. Requiring good design 

Chapter 12. Conserving and enhancing the historic environment  
 

APPRAISAL: 
 
The main considerations to be taken into account are:  

 

i) Character and Form  
ii) Impact upon the Oswaldkirk Conservation Area 

iii) Impact upon the AONB  

iv) Impact upon neighbouring amenity        
v) Other Matters  

 

i) Character and Form  
 

The proposed porch will be constructed from stone corresponding with the host dwelling with UPVC 

glazing and doors. The original roofing material will be retained, which also matches the dwelling 
roof. 

 
Although the building is estimated to be built  in around the mid 1800s, it  does feature modern 

interventions. It is considered that replacing the porch and access will enhance the frontage of the 

dwelling and will also be appropriate and sympathetic to the character and appearance of the existing 
building in terms of scale, form, and use of materials in accordance with Policy SP16 Design.  

 

ii) Impact upon the Oswaldkirk Conservation Area 
 

Section 72 of the Planning ( Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 states:  

 
'In the exercise of planning functions in respect of Conservation Areas 'Special attention shall be paid 

to the desirability of preservation or enhancing the character or appearance of that area' 

 
 

The dwelling already features modern interventions including heavy barge boards, exposed soffits and 

the existing porch.    
 

Before revised plans were submitted, the Councils Building Conservation Officer had raised some 
concerns regarding the design of the porch. These  included: 

 

- The porch protrudes out to much  
- The door styles need to be more traditional, with the doors being half glazed - half panelled.  

- The window styles to be more traditional.  

 
The revised plans features a more traditional approach to the openings and a reduced width of the 

porch. The proposal is considered not to create any additional harm, and is considered to enhance the 

special character of Pavilion House. The Building Conservation Officer has now no objections with 
the proposal and is considered to be in conformity with Policy SP12 (Heritage). 

Page 206



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

iii) Impact upon the AONB  
 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes states that, The natural beauty and special qualities of the Howardian Hills 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) will be conserved and enhanced and the impact of 
proposals on the AONB and its setting will be carefully considered  

 

As the site is located within the AONB, the AONB Manager at North Yorkshire Country Council has 
been consulted. Some concerns were raised in relation to the initial scheme. 

 
Again the main concern raised by the AONB Manager was the increase in size of the porch and also 

stating; "Pavilion House is the only property on that section of The Terrace that has a porch. The 

current structure is of a conventional design and has a glazed window that is visible along the street, 
whereas the proposed structure would have doors that would be visible from both the eastern and 

western viewpoints. In my view the proposed porch would be out of character with the remainder of 

the properties on The Terrace, of a design that is not vernacular and which is out of proportion to the 
dwelling, and as a consequence would have a detrimental visual impact on the Oswaldkirk 

Conservation Area." 

 
However, the porch has been reduced in size and the design has been changed, resulting in a reduced 

impact on the Oswaldkirk Conservation Area. 

 
With this in mind, it  is considered that the principle of the new porch and its design is in conformity 

with SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 
iv) Impact upon neighbouring amenity        

 

Several letters of objection have been received from neighbouring occupiers of Ewe Cote, Malt 
Cottage of The Terrace and also from an objector based in London. These objections were generated 

as part of the consultation process for the initial scheme and also for the revised scheme.  
 

Occupier of Ewe Cote 

 
-  A replacement porch will further offend the streetscape. 

-  The area of the porch is larger.  

-  Steps have already been built . 
- The materials are acceptable 

 

Occupier of Malt Cottage 
 

- The porch will protrude too far out 

- The proposal will not keep within the conservation plan 
- The proposal has a negative impact on the proposal  

- The porch needs replacing 

- The materials are acceptable. 
 

Objector from London 
 

Comments prior to revised plans: 

- Impact on the character on the street  
- The site has been over-developed in recent years 

- The heavy materials to be used will have a negative impact 

- The proposed porch breaks the character by extending out to the road 
- Proposed extension will have minimal impact on the energy efficiency 

Page 207



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Comments after revised plans submitted: 
 

- Revised plans and elevations are inconsistent in presenting the dimensions of the porch. 

- The materials used, and the proportions proposed are still at  odds with the unique character of the 
property. 

- Inconsistent with the line of development on The Terrace.  

 
Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management Issues) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

states:  
 

It is considered that there will not be a material adverse impact on the amenity of present and future 

occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by 
virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impacts on amenity can 

include, for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an 

overbearing presence. 
 

With regards to the comments raised in relation to the size and design of the porch. These concerns 

have been acknowledged by the applicant and revised plans were received, outlining the reduced 
overall size of the porch and a more traditional approach has been proposed. Although no further 

comments were made by neighbouring occupiers after revised plans were submitted, it  is considered 

that the size and design of the porch is in conformity with the Conservation Area and AONB, as well 
in compliance with Policy SP16 (Design). 

 

Concerns raised surrounding materials have also been noted. However it  is considered that the use of 
stone will correspond with the host dwelling and surrounding area far better than the existing concrete 

textured blocks. The existing tiled roof will be retained creating less of an impact upon the street 

scene.  There are already uPVC elements featured on the main house, and the proposal intends to 
match and be sympathetic to the building.  

 
v) Other Matters 

 

Oswaldkirk Parish Council support the application stating "The Meeting noted that the current porch 
on Pavilion House is in a poor state of repair. The Meeting considered that the proposed replacement 

would enhance Pavilion House and the associated street scene and as a result supported the 

application." 
 

In the light of the above, the proposal is considered to meet the relevant policy criteria outlined within 

Policies SP12, SP13, SP16,SP19 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and within the 
National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  
 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 
 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 
 Proposed Elevations - Drawing Number:05690095-01,03,05,07 

 Design and Access Statement 

 Site Location Plan - Validated on 03/01/17 
  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

Page 208



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 
National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

Item Number: 16 

Application No: 17/00133/FUL 
Parish: Sinnington Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Ward 
Proposal: Erection of a detached four-bedroom dwelling with detached double 

garage and ramped personal access 

Location: Land Adj Riverdell Main Street Sinnington Pickering  
 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk  Expiry Date:  29 March 2017  

Overall Expiry Date:  23 March 2017 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 
 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 
Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) Recommend refusal  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Parish Council Object  
Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Building Conservation Officer Object  

 
Neighbour responses: Mr John Johnson, Nicholas & Jane Staley, J & D J 

Turnbull, Mrs Fiona Shepherd, Piers & Farrell Burnett , 

Mrs Rowena Berriman, C Mudd, Mrs E M Sellers, Mr 
Alec Thompson, John Buller & Brenda Cooper, Mr 

Trevor Robinson, Mr & Mrs Flanagan, Mr Douglas 

Oughton, Mr D Brown, B & S Clements, Mr & Mrs G 
Richardson, C & L Grainger, Mrs D Crummack, J C & A 

M Page, Mr Peter Greaves, Mr Malcolm Hunter, Brian & 
Janet Ambler, Michael & Linda Swinnerton, Ms Helen 

Milen, Mrs Karen Selby, Pamela Aveyard, Melanie 

Underwood, Peter & Norma Rees, Mr George Norman 
Moon, Mrs Caroline Kennan, Mr R M Howe, Mr P 

Barratt-Atkin, Mrs E Sommerville, Mr Andrew 

Stephens, Rev Brian N Shackleton, Josephine Harvey, 
Mrs Paula Appleby, Mrs Debbie Mitchell, Mrs Chris 

Jackson, Alan & Susan Hutton, Ruth Wass, Mrs Sally 

Edwards, Anne Wilson, Mr James Wass, Mrs Sue 
Pickersgill, Julie Snowden, Mr & Mrs B Mitchell, 

Catherine Slowther, Mrs Denise Simpson, Mr Alan 

Harkness, Mrs Janet Pearson, Lady Elizabeth Kirk, Mr L 
Scaling, Mr Jonathan Wilson, Mr Geoffrey Waller, Mr 

John Edmondson, Shelley Campbell, Mr Lee Mitchell, 

Mrs Denise Bartlett , Mr David Ramsden, Mrs Helen 
Browes, Roger & Christine Hudson, Mr Fred 

Nightingale,  
 

 

 

SITE:  
 
The application site contains an area of land currently used for grazing. Its frontage to Main Street 

comprises a field gate measuring  5m in width. The site widens to the west with a rear boundary 

measuring  27m in length and a depth of approximately 50m. The site is located between Riverdell, a 
detached bungalow, and Meadow Croft an end terraced property.  

 

Page 221

Agenda Item 16



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

The site area approximately measures 750m2 . The majority of the application site is within the 
development limits of Sinnington and within its Conservation Area. 

 

The site is located within Flood Zone 3, and it  is understood that in past flood events the site has 
flooded and provides an outfall for flood waters on Main Street that protects other properties along 

Main Street.  

 

PROPOSAL: 
 
Planning permission is sought for the erection of a detached dwelling. The proposed dwelling is to be 

located behind the terrace of properties to the south and behind the building line of Riverdell to the 

north. The building will have an undercroft with 3 floors above. The man part of the dwelling will  
measure 8m in depth by 6 m in width and 7m to the eaves height and 11m to the ridge height. It  will 

feature a lower attached part that will have a footprint of 7m by 5.5m and be 3.7m to the eaves height 

and 5.4m to its ridge height. An elevated pedestrian walkway is proposed on the northern side of the 
dwelling at up to 1.6m above ground level. 

 

A detached double garage is proposed to the south western side measuring 6.3m in width by 6m in 
depth. 

 

It is proposed to erect the dwelling from brick under a tiled roof with UPVC or aluminium windows 
and doors. 

 

HISTORY: 
 

The planning history of the site includes: 

 
2016: Planning application withdrawn for the erection of a dwelling 

 
2015: Planning application withdrawn for the erection of a dwelling 

 

POLICY: 
 

National Policy 

 
NPPF 2012 

NPPG 2014 

 
Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 
Policy  SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 
Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 
Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 
Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP21 - Occupancy Restrictions 

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy 

Page 222



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

 

• The principle of a new dwelling in this location; 

• The siting, scale and design of the proposed dwelling; 

• The impact of the proposal upon designated heritage assets and whether the proposal will 

preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the Sinnington Conservation Area; 

• The impact of the proposal upon the amenity of the adjoining neighbours; 

• Whether the proposal will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity; 

• Highway safety; 

• Potential contamination; 

• Drainage; and 

• CIL 

 
The principle of a new dwelling in this location and flood risk issues 

 

Sinnington is not a 'Service Village', as such it  is regarded as an 'Other Village'. In such locations, 
Policy SP2 of the Local Plan Strategy permits infill development within a 'continually built-up 

frontage' restricted to Local Needs Occupancy.  The plot itself is not considered to be an infill plot, 

and not within a continually built up frontage. The width of frontage of the site is 5m, being a field 
access. The dwelling is located behind the building lines of both adjoining properties. By virtue of the 

shape of the site, and its limited frontage, the development of this site as proposed is not considered to 

constitute infill development 'within a continually built  up frontage'. 
 

The requirements of Local Needs Occupancy are set out in Policy SP21, which states: 

 
'a) Local Needs Occupancy 

To meet local housing need in the non-service villages the occupancy of new market housing will be 

subject to a local needs occupancy condition where this accords with Policy SP2, and will be limited 
to people who: 

 

• Have permanently resided in the parish, or an adjoining parish (including those outside the 
District), for at least three years and are now in need of new accommodation, which cannot 

be met from the existing housing stock; or 

• Do not live in the parish but have a long standing connection to the local community, 

including a previous period of residence of over three years but have moved away in the past 
three years, or service men and women returning to the parish after leaving military service; 

or 

• Are taking up full-time permanent employment in an already established business which has 
been located within the parish, or adjoining parish, for at least the previous three years; or 

• Have an essential need arising from age or infirmity to move to be near relatives who have 
been permanently resident within the District for at least the previous three years' 

 
There has been no information submitted to demonstrate who is intended to occupy the proposed 

dwelling and is need of new housing which cannot be provided by the existing housing stock. The 

policy is designed to prevent speculative new development in such villages as Sinnington and to only 
allow new residential development where a need has been established.  This issue has been brought to 

the agent 's attention previously through the pre-application enquiry and on the previous 2 planning 

applications. In the absence of this information, the principle of the proposed development is not 
established. 

 

Furthermore, the site is located within Flood Zone 3. The detailed letters of objection confirm the site 
has flooded in the past, and it  is used as an outfall for surface water on Main Street. This reduces the 

flood risk to properties to the south and minimises the flood event to other properties in the locality. 

Page 223



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

In respect of assessing flood risk  para. 101 - 103 of NPPF states: 
 

'101. The aim of the Sequential Test is to steer new development to areas with the lowest probability 

of flooding. Development should not be allocated or permitted if there are reasonably available sites 
appropriate for the proposed development in areas with a lower probability of flooding. The Strategic 

Flood Risk Assessment will provide the basis for applying this test. A sequential approach should be 

used in areas known to be at risk from any form of flooding. 
 

102. If, following application of the Sequential Test, it is not possible, consistent with wider 
sustainability objectives, for the development to be located in zones with a lower probability of 

flooding, the Exception Test can be applied if appropriate. For the Exception Test to be passed: 

● it must be demonstrated that the development provides wider sustainability benefits to the 
community that outweigh flood risk, informed by a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment where one has 

been prepared; and 

● a site-specific flood risk assessment must demonstrate that the development will be safe for its 
lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users, without increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, 

where possible, will reduce flood risk overall. Both elements of the test will have to be passed for 

development to be allocated or permitted. 
 

103. When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure flood risk is 

not increased elsewhere and only consider development appropriate in areas at risk of flooding 
where, informed by a site-specific flood risk assessment following the Sequential Test, and if required 

the Exception Test, it can be demonstrated that: 

● within the site, the most vulnerable development is located in areas of lowest flood risk unless there 
are overriding reasons to prefer a different location; and 

● development is appropriately flood resilient and resistant, including safe access and escape routes 

where required, and that any residual risk can be safely managed, including by emergency planning; 
and it gives priority to the use of sustainable drainage systems.' 

 
Furthermore, Policy SP17 of the Local Plan Strategy and the National Planning Practice Guidance 

also requires the application of the Sequential Test to development at risk of flooding, such as this 

proposal. A Flood Risk Assessment has been submitted that considers the site to be suitable for 
development. The Environment Agency has been consulted and objects to the application as there has 

been no sequential test evidence submitted with the application. The Environment Agency state that 

the development of sites such as this should be avoided where there other reasonably available sites 
with a lower probability of flooding. In addition the Environment Agency has confirmed that the 

submitted FRA, is inadequate as it  does not take into account climate change or consider the effect of 

a wide range of flooding events, including extreme events. The Environment Agency has stated: 
 

'Regarding previous applications for this site it was assumed that flood flows were coming out of bank 

from the River Seven across the field towards the development. Evidence provided by local residents 
suggests that the flooding mechanism is that flood flows come out of bank upstream of the road 

bridge, flow across the village green and down Main Street, and return to the River Seven through the 

development site. Following the accounts submitted by the residents we have investigated this matter 
further and confirmed that this is correct. 

 
As this is a narrow (pinch) point for the return of flood flows to the river it is imperative that the flood 

flow route and associated flood flow rates are maintained so as not to increase or exacerbate flood 

risk to others for the lifetime of the development. You will therefore need to clearly demonstrate that 
the development can be built in such a way that flood flow routes and flood flow rates are not altered. 

Alternatively, the development should be moved away from the flood flow route so that the issue is 

more one regarding loss of storage which can be more easily mitigated for.' 

Page 224



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

In essence, the applicant is required to demonstrate why the proposed dwelling has to be located on 
this site, and that there are no other suitable locations for the proposed dwelling (Sequential Test). If 

the Sequential Test is met, the Exception Test has to be applied. Only if both the Sequential Test and 

Exception Test are met, should the principle of residential development in this location considered be 
acceptable. As no need for a dwelling of this type and size in Sinnington has expressly been justified 

(pursuant to Local Needs Occupancy), the search area for the sequential test is considered to be wide, 

and not limited to Sinnington. This is because the Council's residential strategy seeks to focus new 
residential in the most sustainable settlements, in this case Pickering and Kirkbymoorside are 

identified as Local Service Centres and a focus for growth. Moreover, in the absence of an adopted 
Housing Allocations DPD, the search area is not necessarily constrained by the location of 

development limits. The agent has stated that the applicant does not own any other land and so this 

location is the only place a new dwelling could be located. That in itself, is not considered to be 
sufficient to meet the Sequential Test in this case. As stated above, no information has been submitted 

regarding the motivation for the application and the need for the dwelling, and why the existing 

housing stock cannot provide the accommodation that is required. Given the wide search area for the 
Sequential Test, including both Pickering and Kirkbymoorside, it is considered that there are 

opportunities to develop a single dwelling on land with a lower risk of flooding. It  is therefore 

considered that the proposed site fails the Sequential Test. 
 

Notwithstanding the above point regarding the Sequential Test, it is considered that the development 

of this site, including the ground works, hard surfacing and the introduction of structures will 
inevitably reduce the route flood waters would take currently and prevent the passage of water back to 

the River Seven. As a result  it  is considered that the development of this site is likely to exacerbate 

flooding elsewhere in the locality. 
 

In view of the above, there is no need demonstrated for the proposed dwelling, and the proposed 

dwelling does not meet the requirements of Policy SP2 of the Local Plan Strategy in terms of its 
relationship to surrounding properties. In addition, based on the submitted information the site has not 

passed the Sequential Test, the Flood Risk Assessment is inadequate, and the development of the 
development of this site is likely to exacerbate flooding to other properties within the locality. The 

principle of a dwelling on this site is therefore not considered to be established. 

 
The siting, scale and design of the proposed dwelling 

 

In terms of design, para. 56 and 57 of NPPF states: 
 

'56. The Government attaches great importance to the design of the built environment. Good design is 

a key aspect of sustainable development, is indivisible from good planning, and should contribute 
positively to making places better for people. 

 

57. It is important to plan positively for the achievement of high quality and inclusive design for all 
development, including individual buildings, public and private spaces and wider area development 

schemes.' 

 
In addition, Policy SP16 of the Local Plan Strategy states: 

 
'Development proposals will be expected to create high quality durable places that are accessible, 

well integrated with their surroundings and which: 

 

• Reinforce local distinctiveness 

• Provide a well-connected public realm which is accessible and usable by all, safe and easily 
navigated 

• Protect amenity and promote well-being 
 

To reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, siting, form, layout, scale and detailed design of new 

development should respect the context provided by its surroundings....' 

Page 225



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy also seeks to ensure new development does not adversely 
affect the character and appearance of the locality it  is to be situated within.  

 

The proposed dwelling features an undercroft with 3 storeys above, and a raised pedestrian link along 
the northern boundary of the site. The design of the dwelling has been strongly influenced by the 

unusual shape of the application site and its location within Flood Zone 3. Nonetheless the siting, 

scale and design of the proposed dwelling and raised pedestrian link is at odds with the character and 
appearance of Sinnington. Whilst there are some 3 storey properties in the village these comprise a 

traditional terrace of dwellings with no undercroft.  
 

The details of the design, including the raised area to allow cars to pass underneath, the steep roof 

pitch, the front gable, large barge boards/eaves detailing, and materials are not considered to be 
representative of the local vernacular in Sinnington. 

 

The raised pedestrian link is completely at odds in this rural village and introduces a wholly 
discordant feature.   

 

The dwelling at 11m at its highest point is somewhat higher than the bungalow to the north by 
approximately 4m and 2.5m higher than Meadowcroft to the south. In addition, the existing terrace of 

3-storey dwellings to the south measure approximately 8.7m in height.  This stark and dramatic 

change in heights is considered to be harmful to the character and appearance of the village.  
 

In view of the above the proposal is considered to conflict with NPPF and Local Planning Policy. 

 
The impact of the proposal upon designated heritage assets and whether the proposal will preserve or 

enhance the character and appearance of the Sinnington Conservation Area 

 
Policy SP12 of the Local Plan Strategy states: 

 
'Designated historic assets and their settings, including Listed Buildings, Conservation Areas, 

Scheduled Monuments and Registered Parks and Gardens will be conserved and where appropriate, 

enhanced. Development proposals which would result in substantial harm to or total loss of the 
significance of a designated heritage asset or to the archaeological significance of the Vale of 

Pickering will be resisted unless wholly exceptional circumstances can be demonstrated.' 

 
S72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas ) Act 1990 states:  

 

(1)In the exercise, with respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, of any functions 
under or by virtue of] any of the provisions mentioned in subsection (2), special attention shall be 

paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.' 

 
The Council's Buildings Conservation Area has stated that she objects to the proposal as outlined in 

her earlier memo dated 28 July 2016 in relation to application 16/1086/FUL.   It  has also been stated: 

 
'In addition, this design is alien to the character of the character of the conservation area due to its 

strong vertical emphasis. There is a predominance of attached properties in the vicinity giving a long 
and low horizontal emphasis to the streetscene. The height and width proportions of the proposed 

dwelling has a strong vertical emphasis that is exacerbated by  the steeply pitched dormer window 

and is an alien form in this context. In my opinion it does not accord with the Planning (Listed 
Building and Conservation Areas) Act which imposes a duty to have special regard to the 

preservation or enhancement of conservation areas.' 

 
The harm identified above upon the heritage asset (Sinnington Conservation Area) by virtue of the 

siting, scale, design and materials proposed dwelling is not considered to be outweighed by any 

benefits associated with the scheme. The proposed development is also not considered to preserve or 
enhance the character and appearance of the Sinnington Conservation as required by S72.  

Page 226



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

The impact of the proposal upon the amenity of the adjoining neighbours 
 

Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy states: 

 
'New development will not have a material adverse impact on the amenity of present or future 

occupants, the users or occupants of neighbouring land and buildings or the wider community by 

virtue of its design, use, location and proximity to neighbouring land uses. Impact son amenity can 
include, for example, noise, dust, odour, light flicker, loss of privacy or natural daylight or be an 

overbearing presence' 
 

The proposed dwelling is to be sited 1m from the northern boundary to Riverdell and  3.5m from 

Riverdell itself. It is also to be  2m from  the boundary to Meadowcroft and 5.5 m from the property 
itself. The proposed dwelling measures 7m at eaves height and 11m at ridge height. It  is considered 

that this close arrangement of dwellings and excessive height will give rise to an overbearing impact 

upon the amenities of the occupiers of the adjoining properties. Furthermore the proposal is also 
considered to give rise to an unacceptable loss of sun lighting and day lighting issues for those 

adjoining properties. 

 
It  is noted that the side windows on the proposed dwelling are to be obscure glazed. However, the 

proposed raised pedestrian walkway and elevated outside area to the rear is considered to introduce an 

unacceptable level of potential overlooking towards the adjoining properties, particulalry Riverdell. 
The pedestrian walkway is directly on the northern boundary and it  will be raised above the current 

ground level by up to 1.6m, thereby a person's eye level could be at least 3m above the current ground 

level affording clear views into the private amenity space of Riverdell. The proposal will also reduce 
the level of privacy to the adjoining properties by virtue of the raised terraced area. 

 

In view of the above the proposal is considered to have an adverse effect upon the amenity of the 
adjoining neighbours and to be contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Local Plan 

Strategy. 
 

Whether the proposal will have a satisfactory level of residential amenity 

 
The proposed dwelling has a satisfactory level of private amenity space. However, this area is 

constrained by virtue of the design of the scheme. 

 
Highway safety 

 

The application site has an existing vehicular access onto Main Street.  The local Highway Authority  
has confirmed that there are no objections in terms of highway safety subject to conditions. 

 

Potential contamination 
 

A screening assessment has been submitted that has not identified any potential areas of concern in 

regard to land contamination. 
 

Drainage 
 

Foul water is to drain to the mains, and surface water is proposed to be drained to soakaways. There is 

concern that soakaways would not be appropriate in times of flooding and could exacerbate the 
current flood risk.  

 

CIL 
 

The development is chargeable to CIL, and the current charge has been calculated at £13,770, should 

the application be approved. 
 

Page 227



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

Other issues: 
 

The Parish Council has objected to the proposal in relation to flood risk and the appearance of the 

proposed development. 
 

This application has attracted 59 letters of objections at the time of writing the report. These 

objections focus on  flooding implications; the appearance of the proposed development and its 
impact upon the Conservation Area; emotional and financial implications (particularly upon elderly 

residents); highway safety; that more affordable housing is required and not large 4 bed detached 
properties which are said to be in abundance; residential amenity impacts from the proposal; and that 

the scheme does not address housing needs.  It  is described in the majority of letters how the site is 

used to alleviate flood waters in times of a severe downpour when the river cannot cope and Main 
Street floods. The site is used as a natural way of draining surface water away from other properties 

on Main Street to the south of the site and back to the River Seven. The diversion of flood waters in 

this manner is said to reduce the flood risk to other properties.  It is noted that there is strong feeling 
in the village on this point and there are concerns about how the proposal could make flooding worse 

for other residents. It is acknowledged that 'Slowing the Flow' has made some difference, 

nevertheless, previous flooding and its Flood Zone 3 classification cannot be ignored. The other issues 
raised by the objectors are considered to have been appraised above. 

 

In addition, there have been 4 letters of support submitted. The reasons for support include: 
 

• The proposal will not be detrimental to flood prevention; 

• The development will be good for the village; 

• One individual is looking to move to the area from Pickering and there are very few 
affordable houses; 

• That is hypocritical oppose development on private land as other homes in the village have 
also been built  on private land at that t ime; 

• There are very few families in the village; 

• The proposal does not affect the appearance of the village; 

• The proposed dwelling has been raised so it  will not flood 

• The proposed dwelling is not considered to be eyesore but in-keeping; 

• The proposed dwelling will be the safest house in Sinnington in terms of flood risk; 

• That the house is design for life; and, 

• That the benefits of the scheme outweigh the harm. 
 

Many of the above issues which are material planning considerations have been addressed in the 
appraisal above. Officers have a contrary view to those supporting the application in terms of its 

appearance, its risk to flooding, and whether its benefits outweigh the harm arising from the proposal. 

The proposed dwelling cannot be regarded as an Affordable House, it  is a market dwelling.  
 

In view of the wide ranging objections to this application, Members are recommended to refuse 

planning permission for this proposed development. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Refusal   
 
1 The application site has flooded and is located within Flood Zone 3. There is insufficient 

information submitted to demonstrate that the sequential test in respect of flood risk can be 
passed in this case. The proposal will therefore result in an unjustified dwelling being 

located within Flood Zone 3. The proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of para 

101 of NPPF, the guidance within NPPG, and Policy SP17 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 
Strategy. 

 

 
 

Page 228



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

14 March 2017  

 

2 In addition to Reason 01 above, the application site is considered to be unsuitable for a 
residential dwelling given its location within Flood Zone 3 and the clear risk of flooding to 

the proposed property and other properties in the locality. There is also considered to be an 

unacceptable risk of the displacement of flood waters to other properties in the locality 
thereby exacerbating existing flood risk issues. The proposed development is therefore 

considered to be contrary to the requirements of NPPF, NPPG and Policy SP17 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
 

3 The Flood Risk Assessment by Alan Wood & Partners dated September 2016 does not 
comply with the requirements of the Planning Practice Guidance that accompanies the 

National Planning Policy Framework.  As a result , the proposal does not form a suitable 

basis for assessment to be made of the flood risks arising from the proposed development. 
 

4 The site is located within a non-service village. In accordance with Policy SP2 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy only limited infill development within a continually 
built-up frontage is permitted. The application site is located partly behind an existing 

property (Meadowcroft) and does not form a continually built  up frontage. Furthermore 

there is strong character of linear and street frontage development in Sinnington, to which 
the siting of this proposed dwelling would not respect. The proposed development is 

therefore considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Plan - 

Local Plan Strategy. 
 

5 Policy SP2 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy only permits new dwellings in 

locations such as Sinnington, that are 'others villages' where there is an identified need for 
such accommodation. The Local Planning Authority requires justification of the need for 

this dwelling and why the existing housing stock cannot accommodate this need in 

accordance with the requirements of Policy SP21 of the Local Plan Strategy. In the absence 
of justification, the proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of Policies SP2 and 

SP21 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 
 

6 The proposed dwelling by virtue of its sit ing, scale, bulk and height is considered to have an 

overbearing and oppressive  impact upon the adjoining properties and unacceptably reduce 
the level of sun lighting, day lighting, and privacy to the adjoining properties. In addition the 

proposed raised pedestrian access and terrace is considered to give rise to an unacceptable 

level of potential overlooking to the adjoining properties.  The proposed development is 
therefore considered to be contrary to the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - 

Local Plan Strategy. 

 
7 The proposed development by virtue of its sit ing, scale, design, materials, together with  the 

detail of  design and the raised pedestrian access and undercroft is not considered to be 

locally distinctive or to respect the character and appearance of the locality. The proposed 
development is therefore considered to be contrary to the requirements  of NPPF and 

Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 
8 The benefits of the application are not considered to outweigh the harm the proposal has 

upon the character and appearance of the Sinnington Conservation Area  by virtue of its 
sit ing, scale, design and materials. The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to the 

requirements of NPPF and Policy SP12 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and S.72 

of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.  
  

Background Papers: 
  
Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 
Responses from consultees and interested parties 

Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

PERIOD 6 FEBRUARY - 3 MARCH 2017 

  

 

 

1.  

Application No: 16/01710/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Rillington Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr Jacob Foster 

Location: Garthgate Rillington Fields Malton Road Rillington Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

8EB  
Proposal: Erection of detached three-bedroom dwelling with attached two-bedroom residential 

annexe to include internal link and detached double garage following demolition of 

existing three-bedroom bungalow and associated outbuildings 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  

Application No: 16/01879/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Nawton Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr S Wood 

Location: Manor Farm  Main Road Nawton Helmsley YO62 7RD 

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include replacement of existing doors and 
windows, formation of 1no. additional windows to ground floor south elevation and 

1no. window to ground floor north elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

3.  
Application No: 16/01906/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Coulton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr J Goodwill  
Location: Barns At Coulton Grange Coulton Lane Coulton Helmsley   

Proposal: Change of use and alterations to two storey section of existing barn to form a 3no. 

bedroom dwelling together with formation of parking and turning areas 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4.  

Application No: 16/01932/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Leavening Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr Sean McDermott 

Location: Madeira York Road Leavening Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9SN  

Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension to side elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  

Application No: 16/01954/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council 
Applicant: Mrs H Sleights 

Location: Escomb The Old Quarry Hovingham Helmsley YO62 4LB  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to side elevation, installation of 2no. flat roofed 
dormer windows to rear elevation and alterations to existing detached garage to form 

additional domestic living space 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 

 Page 247

Agenda Item 18



 

6.  
Application No: 16/01963/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Martin O'Vastar 
Location: Forestry Commission  Outgang Road Pickering YO18 7EL 

Proposal: Formation of an additional car park to serve Forestry Commission District Office 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

7.  
Application No: 16/01978/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Leavening Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Sean McDermott 
Location: Madeira York Road Leavening Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9SN  

Proposal: External alterations to include erection of single storey extension to side elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

8.  
Application No: 16/02008/73A    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Slingsby Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Andy Hague 
Location: Hutton Brothers Car Sales Railway Street Slingsby Malton YO62 4AH  

Proposal: Variation of Condition 17 of approval 14/00960/FUL dated 14.06.2015 to replace 

drawing nos. 05 13 B Proposed Site and Setting Out Plan, 05 15 B Proposed 
Elevations and 05 14 B Proposed Ground and First Floor Plans with corresponding 

amended drawings 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

9.  
Application No: 16/02009/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Paley Bros 
Location: Unit 1A 8 Showfield Lane Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Change of use of a light industrial unit  (referred to as Unit 6) from Use Class B1 to an 

MOT Testing Centre (Use Class B2) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10.  

Application No: 16/02010/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 
Applicant: Paley Bros 

Location: Unit 1B 8 Showfield Lane Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a building forming 4no. light industrial units and 1no. office unit (Use 
Class B1) together with associated parking 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

11.  

Application No: 16/02014/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Amotherby Parish Council 

Applicant: Ann Hall & Paul Penty 

Location: 4 Seven Wells Amotherby Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6TT  
Proposal: Erection of single storey rear extension to form a bedroom and part conversion and 

alteration of garage to form an en-suite bathroom and store 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 248



 

12.  
Application No: 16/02016/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Newton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr And Mrs Winsor 
Location: Laburnum House High Street Newton On Rawcliffe Pickering North Yorkshire 

YO18 8QA  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension and porch extension to front elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

13.  

Application No: 16/02015/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 
Applicant: Mr Eric Parks 

Location: Keld Head  Keld Head Road Kirkbymoorside North Yorkshire YO62 6EN 

Proposal: Erection of a single storey side extension to replace existing linked outbuilding and 
greenhouse 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

14.  

Application No: 16/02020/LBC    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Birdsall Parish Council 

Applicant: The Birdsall Estate Company Limited 

Location: Birdsall House  Birdsall Malton YO17 9NR 

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include formation of an enlarged ground floor 

kitchen area by removal of a central brick internal wall, formation of 2no. internal 

openings to allow access to the "family snug" room, removal of some stud walling, 
installation of a pair of doors to replace the west elevation bay blind central window, 

removal of the iron bars to the windows either side of the central bay and alteration to 

the adjacent external steps 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

15.  

Application No: 16/02021/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Flaxton Parish Council 
Applicant: Kate Dunham & Natalie Hewitt 

Location: Chase Cottage Main Street Flaxton Malton YO60 7RJ  

Proposal: Erection of detached building forming a double garage, store and veranda to replace 
existing garage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

16.  

Application No: 16/02024/LBC    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr John White 

Location: Lowther House Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8JL  
Proposal: Installation of an en-suite bathroom within a bedroom with soil pipe exiting adjacent 

to existing rear soil pipe 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

17.  
Application No: 16/02025/FUL    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Miss V Paley 
Location: Land West Of Middlecave Cottage  Maiden Greve Malton YO17 7BE 

Proposal: Erection of a detached four-bedroom dwelling to include attached double garage and 

formation of vehicular access 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 Page 249



 

18.  
Application No: 16/02029/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Miss Jennifer Allanson 
Location: 63 Westgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AZ  

Proposal: Internal alterations to include installation of block-rendered wall and 

ledged-and-braced door between living room and dining area 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

19.  

Application No: 16/02030/TELN56    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Ampleforth Parish Council 
Applicant: Cornerstone Telecommunication Infrastructure Ltd (CTIL) 

Location: Land At Waste Water Treatment Works Mill Lane Ampleforth   

Proposal: Erection of a 15 metre-high monopole to include 3no. antennas, 3no. RRUs and 2no. 
300mm transmission dishes together with associated equipment cabinets and 

ancillary development within a 2m high fenced compound 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

20.  
Application No: 16/02031/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr G & Mrs J Slack 
Location: Field View  West Lund Lane Kirkbymoorside YO62 6AJ 

Proposal: Erection of garden room with balustraded decking area on west elevation to replace 

existing conservatory, erection of detached double garage and storage building to 
replace existing stables and storage building and regrading and extending of 

drive/car and caravan turning areas into part of existing paddock area changing the 

land use to additional domestic curtilage 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

21.  

Application No: 16/02032/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 
Applicant: Mrs Preston 

Location: Leaside  Village Street Keldholme Kirkbymoorside YO62 6ND 

Proposal: Installation of 2no. dormers to front elevation 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

22.  

Application No: 16/02036/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Harome Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr A Garside & Mrs F Lovell 

Location: Shaw Moor Farm  Harome Heads Road Harome Helmsley YO62 5HZ 

Proposal: Alterations to existing detached outbuilding to form additional domestic living space 
to include installation of replacement timber framed double glazed doors and 

windows to west and south elevations 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

23.  
Application No: 16/02040/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Thornton-le-Dale Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Halliday 
Location: Hurrell House  Hurrell Lane Thornton-Le-Dale Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 

7QR 

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to side and rear elevations and detached garage 
following demolition of existing extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 Page 250



 

24.  
Application No: 16/02041/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Andrew White 
Location: Paddock House  Langton Road Norton Malton YO17 9PX 

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/part first floor/part single storey extension to south west 

elevation (revised details to refusal 16/01439/HOUSE dated 07.11.2016) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.  

Application No: 16/02042/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Gilling East Parish Council 
Applicant: Mr Rob Fawcett 

Location: Fairfax Arms  Main Street Gilling East Helmsley YO62 4JH 

Proposal: Erection of orangery extension to south elevation to form restaurant (revised details 
to approval 16/01223/FUL dated 31.08.2016) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

26.  

Application No: 17/00002/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Westow Parish Council 

Applicant: Kathy Charteris 

Location: Stonecroft  Chapel Lane Westow Malton YO60 7NE 

Proposal: Application of lime render to single storey rear extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

27.  

Application No: 17/00003/FUL    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Lillings Ambo Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Woodhead 

Location: East Lilling Grange Farm  New Road West Lilling YO60 6RW 

Proposal: Erection of an attached equestrian building comprising 8no. stables, tack room, stalls 

and inspection and wash area 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

28.  
Application No: 17/00016/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs M Hall 
Location: 59 Welham Road Norton Malton YO17 9DS 

Proposal: Erection of a two storey extension to east elevation following demolition of existing 

lean to style extension and erection of replacement bay window to north elevation 
with roof extended to form a canopy over the entrance door 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

29.  

Application No: 17/00029/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council 

Applicant: R Jackson & H Mahoney 

Location: 15 Chestnut Avenue  Main Street Welburn Malton YO60 7EH 

Proposal: Erection of two storey extension to side elevation following demolition of existing 

attached outbuilding 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Page 251



 

30.  
Application No: 17/00015/TELN56    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Applicant: Cornerstone Telecommunications Infrastructure Ltd (CTIL) 
Location: Land North Of North Garth Lane Sheriff Hutton   

Proposal: Erection of a 17.6 metre-high monopole to include 3no. antennas, 3no. RRUs and 

2no. 300mm transmission dishes together with associated equipment cabinets and 
ancillary development within a 1.1m high timber stockproof fenced compound 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

31.  

Application No: 17/00048/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 
Parish: Acklam Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Smith 

Location: 1 Melton Cottages  Main Street Acklam Malton YO17 9RG 

Proposal: Erection of two storey extension to side elevation and formation of vehicular access 

(revised details to approval 16/01601/HOUSE dated 12.12.2016) 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

32.  
Application No: 17/00075/TPO    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs Anna Rees 
Location: Beech Grove 41 Middlecave Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7NE  

Proposal: Crown lift  to 5m and crown reduce to clear building, reducing lateral branch by 1.5m 

T6 of TPO 3/1985 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Page 252



  

 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 24 January 2017 

by Philip Lewis  BA (Hons) MA MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date:  13 February 2017 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/W/16/3162909 

Land East of Main Street, Sinnington, Pickering North Yorkshire, Easting 
474690 Northing 485661   

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission. 

 The appeal is made by Ms Elizabeth Newbronner against the decision of Ryedale District 

Council. 

 The application Ref 16/01030/FUL, dated 10 June 2016, was refused by notice dated 

8 August 2016. 

 The development proposed is described as construction of a 20m by 30m all weather 

area for horse turn out and riding for private use only. 
 

Decision 

1. The appeal is allowed and planning permission is granted for construction of a 
20m x 30 m all weather area for horse turn out and riding, private use only at 
Land East of Main Street, Sinnington, Pickering North Yorkshire, Easting 

474690 Northing 485661 in accordance with the terms of the application, Ref 
16/01030/FUL, dated 10 June 2016, subject to the following conditions:  

1) The development hereby permitted shall begin not later than 3 years 
from the date of this decision. 

2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance 

with the following approved plans: Location Plan 1:2500; plan at Scale 
1:1500 and Plan at Scale 1;500. 

3) No development shall commence until samples of the materials to be 
used to surface the turnout area hereby permitted to include the colour of 
the materials, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 

local planning authority. Development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved samples. 

Procedural matter 

2. I have taken the site address from the appeal form as it is more accurate than 
that set out on the application form. 

Main Issue 

3. The main issue for the appeal is the effect of the proposal on the character and 

appearance of the surrounding countryside with particular regard to the Fringe 
of the Moors Area of High Landscape Value. 

Page 253

Agenda Item 19



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/16/3162909 
 

 
2 

Reasons 

4. The appeal site is situated to the east of Sinnington within the countryside and 
consists of part of a larger field which has been sub-divided into several 

paddocks.  The field has mature trees and vegetation to its northern boundary, 
with hedges on its eastern and southern boundaries.  The appeal site which has 
a permitted equestrian use, contains several modest equestrian buildings and a 

hardstanding and is partially fenced with post and rail fencing from the other 
paddocks.  The appeal scheme consists of a surfaced turnout area of about 20 

metres by 30 metres, which would be enclosed by a post and rail fence.  

5. The appeal site falls within the Fringe of the Moors Area of High Landscape 
Value (AHLV).  I observed during my site visit, that the landscape generally 

rises up to the east and north from Sinnington and consists of irregularly 
shaped fields with linear boundaries, typically marked by hedges with some 

mature trees.  Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Local Plan – Local Plan Strategy 
September 2013 (Local Plan) is concerned with landscapes.  Policy SP13 
includes that The Fringe of the Moors AHLV is valued locally for its natural 

beauty and scenic qualities and that there are particular visual sensitivities 
given topography and long distance skyline views. 

6. Whilst the appeal site is situated away from the developed area of Sinnington, 
and does not relate to an area with significant buildings, the proposed 
development would take place within the context of land which has a clear 

appearance of equestrian use and in that respect would not appear as 
incongruous.  During my site visit, I observed the appeal site from the footpath 

which runs near to the appeal site and noted that the proposed development 
would be visible, viewed over the adjacent paddock.  However, views from 
further along the path over the adjacent field to the north would be filtered by 

the vegetation on the site boundary.  Additionally, due to the existing trees and 
hedges, where topography allows longer distance views of the appeal scheme 

such as from the A170 road, these would also be filtered.  Furthermore, the 
use of an appropriate colour for the surface materials for the turn out area 
would assist in minimising its visibility and were I to be minded to allow the 

appeal, this could be the subject of a planning condition.   

7. I have taken into account the visual sensitivities of the AHLV.  However, I 

consider that in this case, the development of the turnout area within an 
established equestrian site and which has significant screening from existing 
hedges and trees, although visible from the some public viewpoints, would not 

appear intrusive or out of context, given the use of the land.  The scheme 
would also not interfere with any long distance skyline views.  Consequently, I 

do not consider that the appeal proposal would give rise to significant harm to 
the character and appearance of the area or the visual sensitivities of the 

AHLV. 

8. The appeal proposal would not therefore give rise to unacceptable harm to the 
character and appearance of the surrounding countryside and the Fringe of the 

Moors Area of High Landscape Value.  Consequently, the appeal proposal does 
not conflict with Local Plan Policy SP13 or Local Plan Policy SP1 which is 

concerned with the general location of development and settlement hierarchy.  
I also do not find that the appeal proposal conflicts with the policies relating to 
the natural environment as set out in the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 254



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/16/3162909 
 

 
3 

Conditions 

9. I have attached conditions in regards of timescale and specifying the plans as 
that provides certainty.  I have also attached a condition regarding the 

submission of details of the surface material for the turn out area in the 
interests of the character and appearance of the area. 

Conclusion 

10. For the reasons given above and having considered all matters raised, I 
consider that the appeal should be allowed. 

Philip Lewis 

INSPECTOR 

Page 255



  

 
 

 
 

 

Appeal Decision 
Site visit made on 10 January 2017 

by David Cross  BA (Hons), PGDip, MRTPI 

an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government 

Decision date: 13 February 2017 

 
Appeal Ref: APP/Y2736/W/16/3157737 

Sauveterre, Low Street, Thornton Le Clay, North Yorkshire YO60 7TG 

 The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

against a refusal to grant planning permission under section 73 of the Town and 

Country Planning Act 1990 for the development of land without complying with 

conditions subject to which a previous planning permission was granted. 

 The appeal is made by Mr & Mrs J White against the decision of Ryedale District Council. 

 The application Ref 16/00011/73A, dated 4 January 2016, was refused by notice dated 

2 March 2016. 

 The application sought planning permission for the erection of 1 no. three bedroom 

dwelling with attached garage, amenity area and parking to include formation of 

vehicular access without complying with a condition attached to planning permission Ref 

13/00600/FUL, dated 25 March 2014. 

 The condition in dispute is No 12 which states that: The dwelling hereby approved shall 

only be occupied by a person(s) who 

• Have permanently resided in the Parish, or adjoining Parish, for at least three years 

and are now in need of new accommodation, which cannot be met from the existing 

housing stock; or 

• Do not live in the Parish but have a long standing connection to the local community, 

including a previous period of residence of over three years but have moved away in the 

past three years; or service men and women returning to the Parish after leaving 

military service; or 

• Are taking up full time permanent employment in an already established business 

which has been located within the Parish for at least the previous three years; or 

• Have an essential need arising from age or infirmity to move to be near relatives who 

have been permanently resident within the District for at least the previous three years. 

 The reason given for the condition is: A local needs occupancy condition is necessary to 

ensure that the district can meet its local housing needs in accordance with Policies SP2 

and SP21 of the RPLPS. 
 

 

Decision 

1. The appeal is dismissed. 

Main Issue 

2. The main issue is whether the disputed condition is necessary and reasonable 
having regard to the provisions of the development plan and the location of 
new housing development. 

Reasons 

3. The appeal site consists of an area of garden land adjacent to the existing 

dwelling of Sauveterre.  Planning permission for a dwelling on the site was 

Page 256



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/16/3157737 
 

 
2 

allowed on appeal in March 2014.  The Inspector granted permission subject to 

a number of conditions, including the disputed condition which she stated was 
required so that the Council could meet its housing needs in accordance with 

the Policies of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy 2013 (RPLPS). 

4. The RPLPS distributes development in accordance with a settlement hierarchy 
identified in Policy SP1.  This identifies Principal Towns, Market Towns and 

Service Villages as being the focuses for growth.  Thornton Le Clay is not within 
one of these settlement types and is therefore classed as being in the ‘Other 

Villages’ category. 

5. Development of housing in Other Villages is allowed in certain circumstances as 
specified in Policy SP2, including infill development subject to a requirement for 

‘Local Needs Occupancy’.  Policy SP21 specifies the requirements of the Local 
Needs Occupancy Condition.  When the dwelling was granted planning 

permission on appeal, the previous Inspector placed the disputed condition on 
the planning permission in accordance with these policies. 

6. The RPLPS was adopted in 2013 and therefore post-dates the publication of the 

National Planning Policy Framework (the Framework).  The settlement 
hierarchy complies with the core planning principles of the Framework in 

focussing significant development in sustainable locations. 

7. Policy SP21(g) states that the lifting of occupancy restrictions will be carefully 
considered on a case by case basis, including any changes in circumstances 

which mean that the occupancy restriction is no longer applicable.  The 
appellants state that there has been such a change in circumstances since the 

adoption of the RPLPS which mean that the identified conflict should be set 
aside and the condition removed. 

8. Firstly, they state that since the 2010 evidence base for the examination of the 

RPLP, in March 2015 there was a housing supply figure of 7.31 years with 
contributions from development in Main and Service Villages as well as site 

allocations.  However, to my mind, this demonstrates the effectiveness of the 
Council’s housing policies in directing housing development towards the main 
settlements, and emphasises the need for the disputed condition in accordance 

with the policies of the RPLPS. 

9. Secondly, they state that whilst there was a previous shortfall in the five year 

supply of housing, the latest housing monitoring report (2014-2015) states 
that no local occupancy conditions have been granted, lifted or varied despite 
the RPLPS only being adopted in 2013.  However, the absence of decisions in 

relation to occupancy conditions over the monitoring period does not indicate 
that the disputed condition is no longer necessary.  In particular, no evidence 

has been provided to me to demonstrate that the Council has approved 
proposals in contravention of the occupancy restrictions of Policies SP2 and 

SP21. 

10. Thirdly, the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations already consider 
economic viability and only relate to developments of 6 houses or more.  

However, the CIL Regulations relate to developer contributions rather than 
conditions, and are therefore not applicable in this matter. 

11. I acknowledge that the condition is restrictive in relation to this site and does 
not apply to existing housing in the village.  However, the condition complies 

Page 257



Appeal Decision APP/Y2736/W/16/3157737 
 

 
3 

with the policies of the Council in directing new housing development to the 

Principal Towns, Market Towns and Service Villages except in specified 
circumstances.  It is therefore reasonable that the condition applies to new 

housing development in ‘Other Villages’ such as Thornton le Clay so that it 
meets local housing needs. 

12. I note that the appellants are concerned about the impact of the condition on 

the market value of the dwelling and the willingness of lenders prepared to 
provide a mortgage for potential purchasers.  However, I am not persuaded 

that such matters are sufficient to outweigh the proposal’s conflict with the 
policies of the RPLPS. 

Other Matters 

13. I note the frustrations expressed by the appellants in relation to the advice 
from the Council, particularly in relation to the effect on market value of the 

proposal.  I have also had regard to the comments raised in relation to 
administrative errors in the handling of the previous appeal by the Planning 
Inspectorate.  I requested copies of correspondence in relation to this from the 

appellants’ agent, but did not receive a response.  However, these are not 
matters for this appeal which I have determined on its planning merits. 

Conclusion 

14. I conclude that the condition is necessary, relevant to planning and to the 
development to be permitted, enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other 

respects.  It therefore meets the tests contained in paragraph 206 of the 
Framework. 

15. For the reasons given above and taking account of all material planning 
considerations the appeal is dismissed. 

David Cross 

INSPECTOR 

Page 258


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 14 February 2017
	5 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	6 16/01887/73A - Land At Corner Of Chapel Road And Forkers Lane, Settrington
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Proposed Plans
	5 - Additional Plan
	6 - Supporting Document
	7 - Parish

	7 16/01658/OUT - North Yorkshire Highways Depot, Manor Vale Lane, Kirkbymoorside
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Proposed Plans
	4 - Revised Plan

	8 16/01775/FUL - Land East Of Longwood Farm, Highfield Lane, Nawton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Proposed Plans

	9 16/01947/MFUL - Easthill, Wilton Road, Thornton Le Dale
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	5 - Proposed Plans
	6 - Revised Plan
	7 - Illustrative Plan
	8 - Planning Statement
	9 - Design And Access Statement
	10 - Parish

	10 16/02004/MFUL - Whitethorn Farm, Marton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Proposed Plans
	4 - Design And Access Statement

	11 16/01165/73A - The Quarrels, Back Lane, Marton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Parish
	4 - Letter From Applicant
	5 - Letter To Applicant

	12 16/01227/OUT - Land To Rear Of The Forge, North Back Lane, Terrington
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Additional Plan
	4 - Design And Access Statement

	13 16/01824/FUL - Land Off Main Street, Whitwell On The Hill
	2 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	3 - Revised Floor Plan
	4 - Revised Elevations
	5 - Design And Access Statement
	6 - Parish 1
	7 - Parish 2

	14 16/01854/LBC - Sows Ear Cottage. 2 Staxton Farm Yard, Main Street, Staxton
	2 - Site Location Plan

	15 16/02013/HOUSE - Pavilion House , The Terrace, Oswaldkirk
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Plan
	4 - Revised Elevations
	5 - Design And Access Statement
	6 - Parish

	16 17/00133/FUL - Land Adj Riverdell, Main Street, Sinnington
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	4 - Block Plans
	5 - Proposed Elevation
	6 - Revised Elevations
	7 - Revised Floor Plan
	8 - Illustrative Plan
	9 - Design And Access Statement
	10 - Parish

	18 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.
	19 Update on Appeal Decisions
	Item 2 Sauveterre Thornton Le Clay


